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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Shareholders,

Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited

KMC-10, Nepal

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of M/s Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited (hereinafter referred
to as "the Company"), which comprises the Statement of Financial Position as on 3 I't Ashaclh , 2081 (15d, 1uly 2024),
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, Statement of Casli Flows and Statement of -hanges
in Equity for the year then ended, and Notes to the financial statements, including a Corporate Overview, Significant
Accounting Policies and Other Explanatory Notes forming part of Financial Statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Financial
Statements read together with Notes forming part of financial statements give a true and fair view of the Financial
Position of the company as at 3lstAshadh,2081 (15th July 2024), of its Financial Perfonnance and its Cash Flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Nepal Financial Rep rrting Standards (NFRSs).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Nepal Standards on Auditing (NSAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Finangial Statements section of
our repod. We are independent of the company in accordance with the ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the
ICAN's Handbook of Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit maffers are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were most significance in our audit of the
financial statements of the financialyear ended on 31't Ashadh, 2081 (15t" July 2024). These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a uhole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to be the kev audit
matters to be communicated in our report.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Land Advance

Land title (Ownership) in orher
person's name instead of company
name and shown as land advance in
the financial statements.

We carried out discussion with the management and those
charged with governance regarding the land advance & ownership of the
land. Our audit procedures to address this matter included, but were not
limited to, the following:

o Reviewing legal agreements, suppofiing documents, and
correspondences to assess the company's rights over the
land.

. Veriiling payments made and reconciling them with the
advance balance disclosed in the financial statements.

. Engaging with management and, where applicable, external
legal counsel to evaluate the steps taken by the company
transfer the title to its n
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Key Audit Matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

o Site inspection to confirn whether the land is used by the
company and same has been confirmed by the management.

Based on the procedures performed, we considered the company,s
payment against the land as an advance and the related disclosures in the
financial statem ents are cons idered appropri ate.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to the matters included in Note 21 to the financial statements that the interest payable on the loan
obtained for the development of the Upper Chirkhwa Hydropower Project (4.70 MW) frorn Rastriya Banijya Bank
Limited for the third and fourth quarter of F.Y 2080/81 remained outstanding as of the reporting date. Howlver, we
note that the accrued interest was fully settled as of the date the financial statements were adopted by the Board of
Directors.

Our opinion on the financial statements is not modified in respect of these matters, and we do not provide any
assurance on them beyond their disclosure in the financial statements.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises all information in the annual
report other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection
with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements, or orrr knowledgi obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, wJconclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report
in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
NFRSs, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or effor.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Companl,'s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable. matters related to going concern and using goirg ccncern bisis of accounting
unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations. or his t.,o realistic altemative buJ
to do so.

Those charged with govemance are responsible for overseeing the Cornpany's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free flom material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or eror, and to issue an auditor's reporl that inciudes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with NSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken based on these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with NSAs, we exercise professionaljudgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the planning and performance of the audit. We also;

o Identi& and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perfonn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control-.c\ R N '



Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures that are

appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and

related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concem basis of accounting and, based

on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosure in the
financial statement or, if such disclosure is inadequate, to modiSi our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease as a going concefir.

Evaluate the overall presentation, sfiucture and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying ffansaciions and events in a mamer that
achieves fair presentation

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As per requirements of section I 1 5 of the Companies Act, 2063 , we further report that:

. We have obtained infonnation and explanations asked for, which, to the best of our knowledge and beliel were
necessary for the purpose ofour audit.

o In our opinion, the company has kept proper books ofaccount as required by the law so far, as appears from our
examinations of thsse books.

r The Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Cornprehensive Income, the

Statement of Changes in Equify and the Statement of Cash Flows have been prepared in compliance with the
Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRSs) and are in agreement with the books of accounts maintained by
the company.

r The Statement of Financial Position, the Statements of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income and the
Statement of Cash Flows read together with notes to account give information required by the Companies Act,
2063 n the manner so required and give a true and fair view:

i. In case of Statement of Financial Position, of the state of affairs of the compaty as at 3 1't Ashadh, 2081;
and

ii. In case of Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income, of the results of operation of
the company for the year ended on 3 1't Ashadh, 208 1 ; and

iii. In case of Statement of Cash Flows, of the cash inflow and outflow of the cornpany for the year ended
on 3 I't Ashadh, 208 I

o Neither we have come across any information about the misappropriation of the fund by the directors or any of
the representatives of the company's staff during the course of our audit nor have we received any such

information from the management.
o No accounting fraud has been observed during the course ofour audit.

r As per our examination we have observed following non-compliance with other legal and regulatory
requirements:

As per Section 91 of Companies Act, 2063,the meeting allowance to be receivable by the directors, for
attending a meeting, their monthly remuneration, daily allowance and travelling allowance or other
facility shall be as determined by the general meeting. However, the directors of the company have been

receiving meeting allowances and salaries from the company but such remuneration was \oJ approved

tur---i.l$
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by the general meeting.



ll. With reference to note 21 of the notes to the accounts, the company has not made provision for any

liabilities relating to the employee benefits in accordance with Labour Act,2074 and has neither been

registered with Social Security Fund as per the provision of Contribution based Social Security Act,

2074.

CA Sunil
Principal

Chartered Accountants
COP No: 708

UDIN :

Date: 25th Magh, 2081

Place: Kathmandu, Nepal

riteshkshetri123@gmail.com
Typewritten text
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal
Statement of f inancial Position
As on Ashadh 3 I st, 208 1 ( 1 5th July, 2024)

Amottnt in NRs.

Particulars Notes
As on Ashadh 31st

2081
As on Ashadh 31sto

2080 (Restated)
As on Shrarvan 1st,

2079 (Restated)
Assets

Non- Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment

Intangibie Assets

Right of Use Asset (ROII) Asset

Intangible A,ssels Under Construction

Other Non-Current Assets

Total Non- Current Assets

5

6

8

9

1,708,293
1,,080,702,2s6

2,880,938

5? ?{n

42,754,874
25,102

913,396,866

52,250

36,364,045

33,125

665,50 1,186

52,250

1.085"343.737 956.229.092 701,950.606
Current Assets

Financial Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Trade Receivables

Margins and Deposits
Other Currelt Assets

Total Current Assets

t0 368,264
i 1 4,535,862
t2 6,411,061
13 24,972,635

36,687,822

400,000,000
(23,732,795)

20,595,852

6,096,06r
25,537,846

52,229,759

280,000,000
(4,277,393)-

s1,662,633

22,693,133

58,655,555

133,012,321

280,000,000

(r./1o,/4r)

Total Assets L122,037,55g 1,00g,45,,g51 g34,g62,.gii

Share Holder's Fund
Share Capital

Reserve and Surplus

Advance for Share Capital

T4

i5
16

TotaI
Liabilities
Norr-Cument Liabilities
Financial Liablities

Long Telm Loans and Borrowings
Lease liability

DeIl'ered Tax Liabilities(lrtret)

17

t8
19

Total Non-Current Liabilities

Financial Liablities
Short Term Loans and Borrowings
Trade and Other Payables

Lease Liability
Other Curent Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

20

21

22

23

s47,365,44r
2,4t9,334-

69,731,790

120,379,977

5,325,580

547.6$,490

117,464,896

65,105,s77

2,502,681

413,988,700

102,000,000

39,094,233

t,s96,73s

r utan Lrauut[Ies
r orar l,quf,y anu r,ranuitie 

" 4,962,927

\
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Dipak Rai
Chairman

@e{, K?g
-f /Z *-/\ .----1

Ganesh"rfian Singh Karki '

Director

iTtY^d{\+t'-d1'
Dawa J6ngmu Shresrha LamaSabita Maharjan

Accountant

Date: 23rd Magh, 2081

Place: Kathmandu

Chapain
Principai

and Associates

ffi
Chartered Accountants

Notes form an integral part statements.



Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Period frorn I st Shrawan, 2080 to 3 1st Ashadh , 2081 (17th July , 2023 to 15th luly, 2024)

Antotrnt in NRs.

Particulars Year Euded 31st Year Ended 3lst
Note

2081

1t,194,7 52

t1,262,187

2080
Revenue tiom Operation
Less: Cost ofSaies
Gross Profit /(Loss)

Other Income

Total Income/(Loss)

Employee Benefrt Expenses

Administrative Expenses

Depreciation and Amofiization Expenses
Total Expenses
Profiti(Loss) from Operation
I'inance Costs

Profit/(Loss) before Bonus, Tax and CSR Expenses
Provision lbr Statf tsonus

Profit/(Loss) before tax and CSR Expenses
Tax Expenses

Cunent Tax Expenses

Def'erred Tax-Income/(Expense)
Profit/(Loss) befor CSR Expenses
CSR Expenses

24
25

26

27

28

29

(67,435)

(67,43s)

9s 1,548

3,249,776

5,205,373

696,000
sls.623
)o'7 \7q

30

9,406,621 t,419,202

-(e 

474,13r) (t,4t9,202)
6,447,565

(ts,921,697\ 0.4r9.202)

(15,921,697; (1,41g,202;

(15,921,697'l (1,419,202)

iz
l9

Net Profit/(Loss) for the Year
Uther Lomprehenstve Income

Revaluation of Propertv, Plant & Equipment
Revaluation of Intangible Assets
Other Comprehensive fncome / (Loss) for the Year
Total Cornprehensive Income (t5,921,697) (t,419,202\
Earnings per Equity Shares ofNRs. 100 each

31 9.37)Basic Earrrings per share-NRs. (0.51)
The accorlpanying Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes form an integral part of the tinancial statemintr

b"
Diphk Rai

Chairman

Darva Jangmu Shrestha Lanra
Director

As per ott'attached

Chapain

Principal

Associates

Date: 23rd Magh, 2081

Place: Kathmandu

r;-/
x.[zo\
F'

Accountants

Sabita



Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Statement of Cash Flows
Forthe Period from lst Shrawan,2080 to 31st Ashadh,208l (17th July, 2023 to 15thluly,2024)

Amotutt fu NR,s.

Particulars
Year Ended 31th

Ashadh,2081
Year Ended 3lth

Ashadh,2080

Cash Flows from Operatirrg Acfivities
Net Proflt After Tax

Adiustment for:
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses

Finance Costs

Cash Flow Before Working Capital Changes
Chariges in Cunent Assets

Changes in Current Liabilities
Cash Generated from Operafing Aciivities
Income Tax Paid

Cash Flo]vs from Operating Activities (A)

(15,921,697)

5,205,373

6347 ,17 s

(1,419,2A2)

207,s79

(4,409,149\ (1,211,623\
(4,685,6s 1)

10,906,425

49,i15,78A
42,382,187

l,gll,625 90,886,344

1,811,625 90.886..344

Cash Flox,s on Investing Activities
Changes in Intangibie Assets Under Construction
Changes in Property. Plant and Equipment
Changes in Project Assets

Cliarges in Investrnent

Changes in Right of Use Asset

913,396,866

40,827,944
(1,085,401,985)

(3,r42,842)

(241,89s,68A)
(6,590,385)

Cash Florvs from Investing Activities (B) (r34,320,0r8) (254.485.06S)

Cash Florvs on Financins Activities
Changes in Share Capital
Change in Long Tenn Loans and Borrowings
Expenses Related to Public Issue

Changes in Lease Liabiiity
Finance Costs

Dividend Paid

120,000,000

(297,649)
(3,53 3,70s)

2,419,334
(6,307,t75)_

133,67439A
( 1,14 i,450)

Cash Flows from Financing Activitlgs (C) I12,280,805 132,532,940
Net Changes iqCash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C) (20.227,s88) (31.066.781)
Opening Cash and Cash Equivalents 20,595,852 51,662,633
Closing Cash and Cash Equivalents JOd,ZO+ 20,s95,852
The accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and Expianatory Notes form an integral part of the Financial Statements.

-'t). / 
^W

'Gan6sh NIan Singh I{hrki
DilcctorA ^^^,,-+^-+dlluLlll Ldl lt

Dipak Rai

Chairman

Date: 23rd Magh, 2081

Place: Kathmandu

./ ,

Dawa Jangmu Shrestha Lama
Diicctor
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal
Statement of Changes in Equify"
For the Period from I st Shrawan, 2080 to 3 lst Ashadh, 208L (17th July, 2023 to T5th IuIy, 2024)

Amount in NRs.

Particulars Share Capital
Reserve and

Surplus
Advance for

Share Capital
Total

Balance as on 1st Shrawan,2079

Issue of Share Capital

Expense Related to Public Issue

280,000,000 (1,716,7 41)

(1,141,4s0)

- 278,283,259

- (1,14t,4s0)
Net Profit for the Year - (1.4i9,202) - (1,419,202)

Balance as on 31st Ashadh, 2080 280,000,000 (4,277,393) - 275,722,607

Balance as on lst Shrawan,2080

Issr-re of Share Capital

Net Profit for the Year

Expense Related to Public Issue

Dividend to the Shareholders

280,000,000

r 20,000,000

(4,277,3e3)

(15,921,697)

(3,533,70s)

275,722,607

120,000,000

(1s,92r,697)

(3,533,705)

Balance as on 31st Ashad!,2081 400,000,000 (23,732,795) - 376,267,20s
The accompanying Significant Accounting Policies and ExplanatoryNotes fonn an integral part of the Financial Statements.

Darva Jl

I*€vu,
Dipak Rai

Chaiman

Date: 23rd Magh,2081

Place: Kathmandu

lgmu Shrestha Lama
I-lirector

%L

Director



CHIRI(HWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes X'orming part of
Financial Statements for FY 2080/81

l. Corporate Overview
l!ils Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited (the "Company") is a company incorporated under Companies Act, 2063
having registered office at KMC-10, Nepal. The company was registered with the Income Tax Office 6'h Falgun,
2065 with PAN 303532918 and was registered with tiie Office of Company Registrar with Registration no.
594571065/066 on 27b Poush, 2065. The company was converted from private to public on 25th Ashadh, 2076
under new registration number 218732/751076.

This company was established with an objective of developing hydropower in Nepal. The company's main line
of business involves development of hydropower projects including detailed feasibility, construction and
operation and transmission and distribution of hydro energy.

The company has developed and been operating Upper Chirkhwa Hydropower Projects in Bhojpur District. The
energy generation capacity of the plant is 4.70 MW. The development/construction of hydropower project has

been completed during this financial year. The generation of electricity started from 20th Jestha, 2081

2. Basis of Preparation and Nleasurement

2.1 Statement of Compliance
The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards (NFRS) as issued
by Accounting Standards Board, Nepai which are generaily in compliance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards as issued and applicable, except mentioned hereinafter. NFRS also includes interpretations
(IFRIC and SIC) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.

The Financial Statements have also been prepared in accordance lvith the Companies Act, 2063 of Nepal.

The financiai statements include Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Profit or Loss and Other
Comprehensive Incotne, Statement of Changes in Equity, Statemeni of Cash Flows and Notes founing integral
part of financial statements.

2.2 Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on an accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are

applie<l consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements.

2.3 Responsibility of Financial Staternents
The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Company's
financial staternents and for the estimates and judgments used in them.

2.4 Presentation
Presentation Currencv
The financial statements are prepared in Nepalese Rupees (NRs.) which is the functional currency. All financiai
informatiott presented in l.Iepalese Rupees has 'oeen rounded to the nearest rupee except otherwise indicated.

Rearrangement / Reclassilication and Remeasurement
The figures for the previous year are reananged, rcclassified, and/or restated 'nr,herever necessary for the purpose

of facilitating comparison. Reconciliations and appropriate disclosures are made wherever necessary.

Statement of Financial Position
Thc clcmcnts of Statcmcni of Financial
applicable) are bifurcated in Curent and

ryl,t>
than cquity (Asscts and

respective mafurity as wel

, normal operating cycle.
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CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overviewo Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes X'orming part of
tr'inancial Statements for FY 2080i81

Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comorehensive Income
The elements of Statement of Profit or Loss (SoPL) and Other Comprehensive Income (OCi) has been prepared

using classification 'by function' method. The details of revenue, expenses, gain and/or losses have been disclosed
in the reievant section.

Staternent of Cash Florvs

The Statement of Cash Flows (SoCF) has been prepared using indirect method and the activities have been
grouped under tll'ee major categories (Cash flows from operating activities, Cash flows from investing activities
and Cash flows frorn financing activities) in accordance with NAS 07.

Statements of Chanees in Equitv
The Statement of Changes in Equity (SoCE) has been prepared to disclose changes in each element of equiry.

2.5 Financial Period
The company prepares financial statements in accordance with the Nepaiese Financial year. The financial year
starts from l't Shrawan and ends on Ashadh end of next calendar year. The coresponding dates for the English
calendar are as follows:

Relevant Financial Statements Nepalese Calendar/Period Gregorian Calendar
Date lPeriod

Reporting Date 3 i't Ashadh, 2081 15th July,2024
Comparative Reporting Date 31't Ashadh, 2080 l6th July,2023
Reporting Period I't Shrawan, 2080 -3 t't Ashadh, 2081 17th July 2023-l5th July,2o24
Comparative Reporting Period I't Shrawan, 2079 -31't Ashadh, 2080 I Tth July 2022-16t\' Iuly,2023

2.6 Basis of Measurement
These financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention except for certain material items that
have been measnred at fair value as required by the relevant NFRS and explained in the ensuing policies below.

3. Use of Estimates, Assumptions or Judgments
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and judgrnents. It also requires rnanagement to exercise judgrnent in
the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. The Company makes cerlain estimates and
assumptions regarding future events. Estimates and judgments are continuously evaluated based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations offuture events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management believes that the estimates used in the preparation of the financial statements are
prudent and reasonable. Future results could differ from these estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is
recognized prospectively in cun'ent and future periods, exeept otherwise stated. Specific accounting estimates
have been included in the relevant section ofthe note, lvherever have been applied along with the nature and effect
of the changes of accounting estimaies, if any. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a materiai adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
prirnarily includes: -

3.1. Useful life and residual value of Property, Plant and Equipment:
Management reviews the useful life of property. plant and equipment at least once a year. Such life is dependent
upon an assessment of both the technical life of the assets and also their likely economic life, based on various
intcrnal and cxtcrnal factors including rclativc cfficicncy and opcrating costs. Accordingly, dcprcci

---/<:(', I'lePby
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CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-I0, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes Forming part of
f inancial Statements for FY 2080/81

3.2. Impairment of Properfy, Plant and Equipment:
At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment to determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated fur order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss (if any). Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and vaiue in use. Value
in use is usually determined on the basis of discounted estimaied future cash flows. This involves management
estimates on anticipated commodify prices, rnarket demand and supply, economic and regulatory environment,
discount rates and other factors. Any subsequent changes to cash flow due to changes in the above-mentioned
factors could impact on the carrying value of assets.

The company has deveioped and has been operating Chirkhwa Hydropower Project of 4.70 MW. The
developtuent/construction of hydropower project has been fully completed during the financial year. All the cost
directly attributable with developmenVconstruction of project till the date of completion of construction has been
capitalized i.e Jestha 20'h and charged as iutangible assets under construr;tion (project cost) and on the date ol
completion the total cost has been transferred to Intangible Assets (Project Assets). Such project assets shall be
amortized over the remaining useful life of the project on SLM basis. Useful life of the project as per clause in
PPA agreement with NEA and generation license is 35 years frorn the date of comrnercial operation or expiry of
period of generation license i.e. BS 2108111/10 whichever is earlier.

3.3. Contingencies:

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise from litigation and oth.er claims against lhe
Company. Potential liabilities that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabiiities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

3.4. Fair Value Measurements:
The management determines the appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair vahte measurements. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level i inputs are trot available, the Cornpany engages thild patty qualifled r.aluators io perform
the valuation. The rnanagement works closely with the quaiified extemal valuators to establish the appropriate
valuation techniques and inputs to the model.

3.5. Recognition of Deferred Tax Assetsiliabilities:
Deferred Tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable in ftlture arising from:

. temporary differences between the canying amounts of assets and liabilities in the Financial Statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in complrtation of taxable profit,

o unused tax losses and/or
. unused tax credits

A sienificant management judgment is required to detennine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognized, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits together with future tax planning
strategies. The Company based its assurnptions and estimates on parameters available rvhen the financial
statements were prepared. Existing cilcumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to rnarket changes or circumstances arising beyond the controi of the Company.

4. Significant Accounting Policies
The Significant accounting policies of the company are explained below:

4.1. Property, Plant & Equipment:
Recoqnition & Nleasurement
On transition to NFRS, the company has elected to continue with tire carrying vaiue of aii of its
and equipment recognized as at 31st A as per the previous GAAP and use
value as the deemed cost of the on 0lst Shrawan, 2079, except
in the notes to accounts. Also, i(t ..1W--A ,2
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separated and reclassified. On the transition date, they are measured at carrying value, calculated as historical cost
rninus accumulated amortization and impairment losses.

All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairrnent losses, if any. Historical cost includes expendifure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs are included in the asset's canying amount or recognized as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that firture economic benefiis associaied with the itern will flow to
the company and the cost of the item can be measured retiably. The canying amount of any component accounted
for as a separate asset is derecognized when replaced. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit and

Ioss during the reporting period in which they are incurred. The Company identifies and determines cosr of each
component/part of the asset separately, if the component/part has a cost which is significant to the total cost of the
asset harring useflil life that is materially different frorn that of the remaining asset. These components are
depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the principal asset. The
residr-ral values, r-rseful lives and rnethods of depreciaiion of properiy, plant and equipment are revierved at each
financial year end and adjusted, ifappropriate.
An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected fi'om its use. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition
of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposai proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)

is included in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognized.

4.2 Depreciation and Amortization
r Depreciation is recognized to write offthe cost of assets (other than Intangible asset) less their residual

vaiues over their useftil lives, using the Written down value (WDV) method.

Right of Use Assets (ROU) are amortized over the period of lease on a straight-line basis.

Amottization is recognized to write off Intangible Assets on a Straightline basis over their estimated
usef.:l lives.

The Intangible assets (project asset-Upper Chirkhwa Hydropower Project 4.70 M. W) shail be arnoftized
over the remaining usefui life of the project on straight line method i.e.27.74 Years.

The estimated useftil life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with
the effect ofany changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis, excapt otherwise stated

in the notes to accounts.

a

a

Ihe est irnated useful lives of the significant items of Properfy & Equipinent and Intangibles are ar follows:

S.N. Assets Block Estirnated Useful
Life

Depreciation
Rate

Depreciation
Method

1 Furnitures and Fixtures 5 Years 20o/o WDV

2 Computer and Accessories 5 Years 20% WDV

3 Automobiles and Vehicles 10 Years 1A% IIM\ /

4 Site Machineries 6 Years 16.670/o WDV

5 Intangible Assets-Soflware 5 Years 20% SLM

6 Intangibie Assets-Proj ect Assets* 27.74 Years 3.60% SLM

Right of Use Asset 5 Years 20% SLM

Only those items having value more than 5,000 per items are capitalized.
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Restriction on PPE
Upper Chirkhwa Hydropower Proiect (4.7 MW)
The company has to transfer the entire generation unit to Government of Nepal under BOOT arrangement after
expiry of period of generation license i.e. 1Oth Falgr:n, 2108 or 35 years fiom Commercial Operation Date (COD)
whichever is earlier. Thus, useftil life is estimated to be 27.74 years from the date of commercial operation. The
developrnent,'construction of hydropow-er project has been completed during the year.

4.3 Intangible Assets-Project Assets:
The development/construction of hydropower project has been completed during the year and commercial
operation of company was started on 20ft Jestha,208 i. All the cost associated with development/construction of
project till the date of full completion of projecthas been capitalized. As on the date of frill completion of the
project of the company i.e. 20th Jestha, 2081, the capital work in progress (project cost) has been transferred to
thre appropriate categoly of intangible assets (Project Asseis) of the Cornpany. trVliere an obligation (legal or
constructive) exists to dismantle or remove an asset or restore a site to its former condition at the end of its usefui
life. the present value of the estimated cost of dismantling, removing or restoring the site is capitalized along with
the cost of acquisition or construction upon completion and a conesponding liability is recognized.
Assets that are directly related to the project shail be capitalized as project assets and such project asset shail be
amodized over the remaining useful life of the project on straight line method.

4.4 Other Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost iess accumulated
amortization and accumulated irnpairurent losses. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are caruied at cost
less accumulated impairment losses.

Certain computer software costs are capitaltzed and recognized as intangible assets based on materiality,
accounting prudence and significant benefits expected to flow there from for a period longer than one year. Gains
or losses arising fi'om de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset

is derecognized.

4.5 Impairment of Tangible and Intangitlle Assets:

At the end of each reporting period, the Company reviews the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible
assets to detetmine whether there is any indication that those assets have sulfered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
iinpainnent loss (if any). When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, cor?orate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Cornpany of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Intangibie assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available for use are tested for
impairment at least annually, and impairment loss is recognized lvhenever thei'e is an indication that the asset may
be impaired.

Recovet'able arnount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present rralue using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of monev and the risks specific to the asset for which the estimates
of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

Ifthe recoverable amount ofan asset (or is estimated fo be less than it's can'ying amou

;1he carrying amount of the asset (or ,

/ l<|ss is recognized immediately in the

ME*{ Y
to its recoverable amount. An impai rffi

and other comprehensive income.



CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes X'orming part of
tr'inancial Statements for FY 2080i81

When an impaitment loss sttbsequently reverses, the canying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying arnount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment ioss is recognized immediately in the
Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income.

4.6 Borrowing Cost:
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing cost also includes exchange differences arising from foreign cllrrency borrowings to the extent they
are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Borowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily
takes a substantial period oftime i.e Jesiha 20,2081 to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as pari
of the cost of the asset until such time as the assets are substantially ready for the intended use or sale. Ail other
borrowing costs are incurred in the period in which they occur. Any investment income on the temporary
investment of borrowed funds has been deducted from borrowing costs.

4.7 Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks, cash in hand, cheques in hand considered
good and demand deposits with an originai matLrrity of three months or less aird highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in vaiue.

4.8 Inventories:
Cost of inventories includes cost of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to theirpresent location and condition. The company has no inventory as on the balance sheet date.

4.9 Other Current Assets:

Other current assets include current assets other financial assets which are unsecured and considered good, unless
othenvise stated. The Company has a poiicy of bifurcating ihe expenses amounting to more than NRs. i0,000 to
prepaid and incurred. Expenses amounting less than this threshold are expensed entireiy within the reporling
period.

4.10 Classification of Current and Non-Current Assets and Liabilities
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current & non-current assets as per the company's normal operatin-e
cycle. Based on the nafure of products and the time betrveen acquisition of assets for processing and their
realization of cash and cash equivalents, the company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve rlonths for the
purpose of classification cunents & non-current classification.

4.II Revenue Recognition:
4.11.1 Sale of Electricity:
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and
the revenue and associated costs incurred or to be incurned can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the
fair value ofthe consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced fbr estimated rebates, charges and other
similar allowa-nces. Revenr-re is recogrized when substantial risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the
buyer under the terms of the conkact.
The main busitress of the cornpany is generation and sale of electricity. Revenue is r'ecognized based on energy
supplied to NEA at the rate given in the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA). Energy supplied to NEA is based
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4.11.2 Finance Income:
Interest income from a financial asset is recogrized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

4.11.3 Insurance Income:
The recognition for insurance proceeds related to losses triggered by an external event depends on the nature and
timing of the insured event. Insurance income is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Company, the amount of income can be measured reliably and when there is an unconditional right to
receive the compensation for business intenuption. Compensation against insurance claim is recognized as an
income when the claim from insurer is virrualiy certain and compensation becomes receivable.

Financial Asset Model
The Financial asset model is used when the Company, being an operator, has an unconditional contractual right
to receive cash or another firrancial asset ii'om or at the direction of the grantor for tlre construction services.
Unconditional contraclual right is established when the grantor contractuaily guarantees to pay the operator (a)
specific or determinable amount; (b) the shortfall, if any, betw'een amounts received from the users of the public
services and specified or determinable amounts.

Intangible Asset Model
The intangibie asset model is used when the Cornpany, being an operator, receives the right (a license) to charge
users ofthe public serv'ice. A right to charge users ofpublic services is not an unconditional right to receive cash
because the amounts are contingent on the extent that the public uses the services. Both type of arrangements may
cxist'within a singlc contract to thc cxtcnt that thc grantor has givcn an unconditional guarantcc of paymcnt for
the construction and the operation i.e. considered as a financial asset and to the extent that the operator has to rely
on the public using the service in order to obtain payment, the operation has an intangible asset. The Company
manages concession arrangements which include power supply from its hydro power plants. The Company
maintains and services the infrastrucfure during the concession period. These concession arrangements set out
rights and obligations related to the infrastructure and the services to be provided. The right to consideration gives
rise to an intangible asset and accordingly, the intangible asset model is appiied. Income from the concession
arrangements earned under the intangible asset model consists of the
(i) Fair Value of the contract revenue, which is deemed to be fair value of consideration transfened to acquire

the asset; and

(ii) Payments actually received from the users.

The intangible asset is amortized over its expected useful life in a way that reflects the pattern in which the asset's
econorytic benefits are consumed by the Companv. starting from the date when the right to operate starls to be
used. Based on these principles, the intangible asset is amortized in line with the actual usage of the specific public
faciliry, r.vith a maximum of the duration of the concession. Any asset carried under concession arrangements is
de-recognized at its disposal or when no future econornic benefits are expected from its fufure use or disposal or
when the contractuai rights to the financial asset expire.
Revenne and cost related to the conskuction are accounted in accordance with IFRIC 12. The cost of each activity
related to acquisition, construction and production ofassets are recognized as construction expenses by reference
to the stage of completion of that activify. Construction revenue, as the fair value of amount due from the guarantor
for the activity undertaken is recognized at the same time. The fair value is calculated based on a 60% discount
rate.

Intangible Assets under Construction.
Xr)
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4.12 Foreign Currency Transactions:
The functional currency of the Company is determined on the basis of the primary economic envirorunent in which
it operates. The functional currency of the Company is the Nepaiese Rupee (NPR).
In preparing the financial statements of the Company, transactions in currencies other than the entity's functional
currency (foreign currencies) are recognized at the rates ofexchange prevailing at the dates ofthe transactions.
The effeci fi'om fluctuation of exchange rate raised while initially recognizing the transaction as per contract on
the base rate mentioned in the contract and settling the transactions at the settlement date has been recognized in
Intangible Assets under construction. Foreign exchange gainiloss occurring from other activity has been charged
to Statement of Profit or Loss and other comprehensive income.
At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fail value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in tenas ofhistorical cost in a foreign crrrency shall be iranslated using the exchange rate at the date of
the transaction.

4.13 Employment Benefits:
The Company does not have any schemes of Post-employment/Long term benefit plans for its employees. The
company has not provided gratuities as per the Labor Act, 2074 and has not been registered with the Social
Securiry Fund as per Contribution Based Social Security Act, 207 4. The company has not made provision for
post-ernploytnent betrefiis il accordance with the Laboi'Act, 2074 and any liabilities relating to the ernployee
benefits in accordance with Contribution Based Social Securiry Act,2074.

Short Term Employee Benefits
i. A liability is recognized for benefits accruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries. in the period the

reiated service is rendered at the uneliscounteel amount ofthe benefits expected to be paid in exchange for that
seriice.

ii. Liabilities recoguized in respect of shorl-term and contractual employees; benefits are measured at the
undiscounted amount ofthe benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

4.14 Staff Bonus
Provision for employee bonus is provided as per the provisions of the Electricity Act, 2049 and Electricity
Regulation 2050 (i.e. 2o/o of netprofit). Provision is created as per annuai profit and paid in the subsequent period
as per the provisions of Bonus Act, 2030. Unspent amounts are transfer:red to Welfare Funds as per the provisions
of Bonus Act, 2030. The company has not made provision for Bonus as company has not generated profit during
the year.

4.15 Income tax
Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises current taxes and deferred taxes. lncome tax is recognized
in the statement of Profit or Loss except to the extent that it relates to iterns recognized directly to equity.

Current Tax
Current tax is the expecteci tax payable on the taxabie income for the year using tax rates at the baiance sheet ciate
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect ofprevious years.
The Company commenced the commercial generation, distribution, and transmission of electricity in the fiscai
year 2077/78.
Further, the company shail be assessed at 00/o tax rate for the first l0 years from the date of commercial operation
arrd 50o/o of the applicable tax rate for later 5 years as per Section 1i(3Gha) of Income Tax Act, 2058.

Deferred Tax
The corrpany shall be assessed at }Yo tax rate for the first l0 years from the date of commercial operation
50o/o of the applicable tax rate for later 5 l1(3Gha) of Income Tax Act, 2058.
management has estimated that no
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4.16 Earnings per share:
I. Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year by the weighted average

number of equity shares outstanding during the year. The weighted average number of equiry shares
outstanding during the year is adjusted fol bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue to existing
sharehoiders, share split and reverse share split (consolidation ofshares).

II. Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend,
interest and other charges to expense or incorne (net of any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive
potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on
the conversion of ail dihttive potential equify shares. Potential equity shares are deemed to be diluti.re
only iftheir conversion to equity shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing ordinary
operations. Poteniial dilutive equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period,
unless they have been issued at a later date. Diluted EPS has not been calculated as no potential equity
exists in the reporting period.

4.17 Provisions, Contingencies and Commitments:
A provision is recognized as a result ofa past event, the Company has a present legai or constructive obligation
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable lhat anoutflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the expected ftlrure cash flows at the pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessment of the time value of rnoney and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the
discount is recognized as a finance cost.

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise fi'orn litigation and other claims against the
Company. Potential liabilitie-q that are possible but not probable of crystallizing or are very difficult to quantify
reliably are treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are disclosed in the notes but are not recognized.

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for compietion of assets.

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and cornmitments are reviewed at each reporting period.

Conversely, if the investor holds, directly or indirectly (e.g. through subsidiaries), iess than 20 per cent of the
voting power of the investee, it is presnmed that the investor does not have significant influence, unless such
influence can be clearly demonstrated. A substantial or majority ownership by another investor does not
necessarily preclude an investor fi-oin having significant influence.

The existence of significant influence by an investor is usuaily evidenced in one or more of the following ways:
(a) representation on the board ofdirectors or equivalent governing body ofthe investee;
(b) participation in policy-making processes, including participation in decisions about dividends or other
distributions;
(c) material transactions befween the investor and the investee;
(d) interchange ofmanagerial personnel; or
(e) provision of essential technical information

The equily method is a method of accounting whereby the investment is initially recognized at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post-acquisition change in the investor's share of net assets of the investee. The profit or loss of
the investor includes the investor's share ofthe profit or loss ofthe investee.

4.18 Investment Property
or for capital appreciation or for both but
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Investment property is property held either,
or for administrative purpose.sale in the ordinary conrse ofbusiness,
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4.19 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contract
embodying the related financial instruments. All financial assets, financial liabilities and financial guarantee
contmcts are initially measured at transaction cosl and. where such values are different from the fafu value, al fair
vahte.

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue offluranciai assets and financial liabilities
(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vaiue through profit and loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value measnred on initiai recognition of financial asset or financial liability. Transaction costs
directiy attribr.rtable to the acquisition of financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and

Ioss are immediately recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Effecti.re Interest Rate Method
The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial instrument and of
aiiocating interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interesr rate is the rate that exactly
discounts future cash receipts or payments tkough the expected life of the financial instrument, or where
appropriate, a shorter period. Incorne/ expense arising on financial instruurents after applying an effective interest
rate is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss and is included in the "Other finance income" or "Other
finance cost" line item. Where the interest component is present il the financial instruments, the implicit interest
rate approximates the effective interest rate.

4.20 Financiai Assets:

Financial assets at amortized cost
Financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost if these financial assets are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contracfual terms
of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flou,s that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal arnount outstanding

Finarrcial asseis measured at fair value
Financial assets are tneasured at fair value tlu'ough other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held
within a business model whose objective is to hold these assets in order to collect contractuai cash flows or to sell
these financial assets and the contractuai terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principai amount outstanding.

The Company in respect of equity investments (other than in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures) which
are noi held for trading has made an irrevocable eleciiou to present in other comprehensive income subsequenl
changes in the fair value of such equity instmments. Such an election is made by the Company on an instrument-
by-instrument basis at the time of initial recognition of such equity investments.

Financial assets not measured at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income are carried
at fair value through the slaten?eilt of 1trofit or /o,i',s. For financial assets rnaturing within one year from the balance

date, the canying amounts approximate fair value due to the shorter maturity of these instruments.

for expected credit losses is recognized for financial assets measured at amortized cost and

the statement of profit or loss.

pany recognizes impairment loss on trade receivables using expected credit loss model. For fi
whose credit risk has not significantly increased since initial recognition, loss allowance equal to

rr-ronths expected credit losses is recognized. Loss allow-ance equal to the lifetirne expected credit losses
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1^1 recognized if the credit risk on the financial instruments has signif,rcantly increased since initial
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De-recognition of financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it hansfers the financial asset, and the transfer qualifies or de-recognition under NFRS 9. Ifthe
Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and reu,ards of o.rnership and continues to control
the transferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a

transfetred financial asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes a

collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received. On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the

differences between the carrying amounts measured at the date of de-recognition and the consideration received
is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

4.21 Financial Liabilities & Equity:
Classification as debt or equitv
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial liabiiify and an equify ilstrument.

Esuity Instruments
An eqrri1y instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting
ali ofits liabiiities. Equity instruments are recorded at the proceeds received, net ofdilect issue costs.

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at

amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method where the time value of money is significant. Interest
bearing bank loans, overdrafts and issued debt are initially measured at fair vaiue and are subsequently measured
a.t arnortized cost nsing the effective interest rate method, Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction

costs) and the settlement or redemption of borrowings is recognized over the term of the borrowings in the

statement of proflt and loss. For trade and other payables maturing within one year frorn the balance sheet date,

the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

Financial guarantee contracts
Financial gllarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs becanse the specified clebtor faiis to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. Financiai guarantee contracts are recognized initially as a liability
at fair value, adjusted for fiausaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance ofthe guarantee.

De-recosnition of linancial liability
A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financiai iiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,

or the terms of an existing liability are suhstantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the

de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liabiiity. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsettine of Financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset, and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet

if there is a curuently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settie on
a net basis, to realiz.e the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

$#' z Yl



CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-I0, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes f,'orming part of
Financial Statements for FY 2080/81

4.22 Leases:

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement
at the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, ol conlains, a lease if ftrifiltrnent of the arrangement is dependent
on the use ofa specific asset or assets and the arrangement convey a right to use the asset or assets, even ifthat
right is not explicitly specified in an amangement.

NFRS 16-Lease is effective for an:rual periods beginning on or after 1 Shra'uvan, 2078.The nelv standard removes
the distinction between operating or finance iease for lessee accounting, resulting in all leases being treated as

finance leases. A iessee is required to recognize a right-of-use (ROU) representing its right to use the underiying
leased asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to make lease payments. The standard permits a lessee
to choose either a full retrospective or modified retrospective transition approach.
The company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability for the remaining period of lease. The right-of-
use asset is initially rneasured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liabiliry adjusted for any
lease payrnents made at or before the ccmmencement date, plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate
of costs to dismantle and remove any improvements made to office premises.

The right-of-use asset is subsequentiy depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to
the end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any,
and adjusted for certain re-measurement of the lease liability.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, cornpany's incremental borrorving rate. Generally, the company uses its incremental borrowing rate
as the discount rate.

The cost of borrowing of company ti1l the date of signing any lease contract has been considered as its incrernental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the iease liabilify comprises the following:
o Fixed payment, including in-substance fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable.
r Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as

at the commencement date.

o Amounts expected to be payabie under a residual value guarantee and
o The exercise price under a purchase option that the company is reasonabiy certain to exercise, lease

payments in an optional renewal period if the company is reasonably certain to exercise an extension
option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the company is reasonably certain not to
terminate early.

The lease liability is measureci at amottized cost using air effective interest. meth<ld. Ii is re-treasured when there
is change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in the company's
estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, if the company changes its
assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option or if there is a revised in-
substance fixed iease payment.

When the lease liability is re-measured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the canying amount of right-of-use asset has been recluced
to zero.

The company has adopted NFRS- 16 Lease for the first time in current FY 2080/8 I . The company has recognized
NRs. 31,42,842 as fught to Use Asset and corresponding lease Liabilify in Statement of Financial Position.

4.23 Segment Reporting
The company is engaged in only one bnsiness activity of "Generation and Sale of Eleetricity".
segment information is not provided as per

r)

ffi, $
/s

/r,*'
+'/4y

Segrnents".



C hirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
Amomt in NRs.

Lorver Chirkhrva
Land at slte Land

Furnihrre antl ComPuter antl
Fixture Accessories

Vehicles
Site

lVlachineries
Total

Particulars

Balance at Ashadh end, 2079

Balance at 1st Sluawan,2079

Addition during FY 79-80

Disposal During the Year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at ist Shlawan,2080

Addition during FY 80-8 1

Transferred to Intangible Assets

Balance at Ashatlh end, 2081

Depreciation

Balance at Ashadh entl,2079

Baiance at 1st Shrawan,2079

Depreciation for FY 79-80

Disposal during year

Balauce at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at lst Shrawan, 2080

Depreciation for FY 80-81

Disposal during year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2081

Net Carrying Amounts

As at Ashadh end,2079

As at Ashadh end, 2080

As atAshadh end,2081

31,795,539

31,795,539

6,54"7,325

38,342,864

38,342,864

(38,342,864)_

3t,795,539

38,342,864-

2,875,570

2,875,570_

2,875,570

2,875,570

(2,87 5,570)

2,875,570

2,875,570-

446,940

446,940

446,940

446,940

78,7 67

525,701

384,124

384,t24

12,563

396,687

396,687

t1 /,fi)

4t4,089

62,816

50,253

111,618

228,230

228,230

13,560

24r,790

241,790

121,500

363,290

163,506

l 63,506

13,961

177,467

t'|7,46'7
7,) lol

209,661

64,724

64,323
-1.53,629

2,939,040

2,939,000

2,939,000

2,939,000

2,939,00;

1,531,875

1,53 1,875

t40,713

1,672,588

r,672,588

126,641

1,799.229

1,407,125

t,266,413

1,139,771

312,630

3n,$a
29.500

38,597,909

38,s97,909

6,590,385

342,130 45,188,294

342,130 45,188,294

190,224 390,491

- (41,218,434)

532,354 4,360,351

154,359

154,359

32,319

186,678

186,678

42,401

229,079

2,233,864

2,233,864

199,556

2,433,420

2,433,420

218,638

2,652,057

t58,2"11 36,364,01s

t55,452 42,'7 54,87 4

303,275 t,108,293

\€\\!z
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Chirkhwa HydroPower Limited

KMC-10, Nepal
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Amomtt in NRs.

Note 6Intangible Assets*

Particulars Talll' Soflrvare Project Assets Total
{AnneYurc-3)

Cost

Balance at Ashadh en,d,2019

Baiance at 1 st Shuawan 2079

Addition duling the Year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at I st Shrawan 2080

Addition during the Year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2081

Amortization

Balance at Ashadh end',2479

Balance at I st Sluawan, 2079

Amor-tization for the Year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at I st Shrawan, 2080

Amorlization fol the Year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2081

Carrying Amounts

As atAshadh etd,2079

As at Ashadh end, 2080

As at Ashadh end, 2081

40,1 15

40,1 15

40,1 I 5

- 1,085,401,985

40,115 1,085,401,985

40,1 15

40,115

40,1 15

40,I15

1,085,401,985

1,085,442,L0{l

6,990

6,990

8,023

15,013

15,013

4,724,832

4,739,845

6,990

6,990

8,023

15,013

15,013

8,023

23,036

33,125

25,t02

17,079

4,716,809

4,716,809

- 33,t2s

- 25,1A2

1,080,685,177 1,080,702'256

*The company has to tmnsfff the entire generation unit to Govemment of Nepal(GoN) under BooT arrangement after the expiry of period of generation license i'e

lOth Falgun,210g or 35 years from commercial operation Date(coD) whichever is earlier.Thus the useful life of the project assets is 27 '74 years from the date of

commercial oPeration.

property, plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets given as security for Long Term Loars and borrowings.(Refer note 17)

Refer Annexure 3 for rnore details.
y''a.uril g,
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Right of Use Asset*

Amount in NRs.

Note 7
Pafticulars Risht of Use Asset(ROU)
Cost

Balance at Ashadh end, 2079

Balance at 1st Shrawan 2079

Addition during the year

Balauce at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at I st Shrawan 2080

Addition dudng the year

Balance at Ashatlh end, 2081

Amortization
Balarrce at Ashadh ewJ,2079

Balance at 1st Sirawan,2079

Amortization lbr the year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2080

Balance at I st Sluawan, 2080

Amortization lbr the year

Balance at Ashadh end, 2081

Carrying Amounts

As at Ashadh end,2079

As at Ashadh end, 2080

As at Ashadh end, 2081

+Refer- note 45 for rnore details.

a\ 4ffiN-4

zJ+z,a4z
3,142,842

261,90;

261,903

3,142,842

3,142,942

261,903

261,903

2,ggo,g3g2,880,938

W9
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10,Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Intangible Assets Under Construction

Antotmt in NRs.

Note 8

S.N. Particulars
As on lst Addition during

Shrawan, 2079 the year
As on 31st Addition during As on 31st

Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh, 2081

1 Pre-OperatingExpenses

2 Civil Works

3 Electlo Mechanical Works

4 Hydro Mechanical Works

5 Transmission Line and Switchyard

6 InAastructure Development Cost

7 Environment/SocialMitigationCost

8 Project Supervision and Management

9 lnterestDuringConstruction

37,846,419

251,839,'794

78,397,0s9

t33.742,299

40, I06,365

26,46r,267

3.735,470

67,674,9t3

27,458,326

79,916,622

4'7,306.964

32,83t,902

3,4 15,55 8

|,812,057

30.82r,967

54,467,409

37,846,4r9

33t,756.416

t25,704,023

166,574,201

43,52t,923

26,46t,267

5,547,527

98,496,880

81,925.735

3 8,536,053

2,217,861

46,026

9,589,301

782,938

1,409,450

20,286,431

57,918,625

37,846,419

370,292,469

r27,92t,884

t66,620.227

53,tt1,224

27,244^20s

6,956,977

l 18,783,3 l0

I 39,844,360

4t,2t8,434I0 Add:land Assets Regrouped from Properry. Plant

and b,qurpment 4t,218,434

TotaI

Less:Project Supervision and Management

Expenses Transferred to Profit(Loss) Statement

Less: Expense Related to IPO Transfered to

Reserve
Less:Depreciation Amount Restated and

172,005,119

Reclassified to Profit/(Loss) Statement*

(i.73 1,008)

(29,720)

(2,942,631)

(1,141,450)

(3s3,444)

- (2,942,631)

( 1,141,450)

- (353,444)

Restated Balance at the end of the Year 665,501,186 250,572,477 913,396,866 172,005,119 1,085,401,985

Less: Transfer to Intangible Assets (172,005,119) (1,085,401,985)

Balance 665,501,186 250,572,477 913,396,866

1D*.g th" p.""r-" y.*r, d"preciation of Properry, Plant and Equipment was charged to lntangible Assets Under Construction. In the cuffent year' management

reassessed the useflil life ofthe Properry,Plant and Equipnient revised depreciation is now charged to the Profit and Loss Account instead oflntangible Assets under

Construction.

The company has developed Upper Chirkhrva Hydropower Proj ect(4.70 M\\). The cost associated with tlre project has been capitalized under the respective heads

titl the date of commercial operatiolts. Commercials Operations has been started on 20th Jestha, 2081'

C\ h,WE
*N
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Chirkhrva Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepai

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Details of Intangible Assets Under Construction

Pre-Operating Expenses Sub Note 8.1

I Particulars
As on lst Addition during

Shrarvan,2079 the year
Addition during As on 31st

the year 80-81 Ashadh, 2081

As on 31st
Ashad,2080

Audit Fees

NEA Expenses

DOED Expenses

Field & SurveyExpenses

ktter Intent Charge

PPA Bank Guarantee Expenses

Detail Surveyer Expenses

PPA Translation

Survey Design

Chirkhwa Credit Ratirg

Chirkhwa DDA

Project Travelling & Transportation Expenses

Project Lodging and Fooding Expenses

Detail Survey Wages

Consultancy Expenses

Employee Cost

Office Rent

Repair and Maintenance

Meeting Expenses

Conrier Charge

Bank Charge

Meeting Allowance

Office Expenses

Legal Fee

Intemet & Fax and Telephone Expenses

Electricity Charges

Donation

GPO Box Renewal

Access Road Wages

TADA Expense

IEE SftrdyExpenses

Consultancy Expenses

Computer Accessories

Printing & Stationery

Advertisement Notice Publication

Membership & Subscrition

StaffTraining Expenses

Fine & Penalty

Vehicle Insurance

Tiffine Expenses

Books & Periodicals

Registration & Renerval Expenses

Iransportation Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses

Vehicle Hire

i08,950

285,000

1,700,000

3.r46,462

49,000

295,513

776,500

4,068

i,500,000

423,750

621,500

1,191,363

1,867,408

2,044,107

672,119

t2,206,385

2,354,964

114,263

132,514

685

16,1 1 I
1 90,588

909.633

8,275

214,096

50,012

208,502

3,750

i 00,000

1,103,9 l4
565,000

585.000

3 1,695

339,078

1 30,1 68

33,000

5.000

10,366

35.961

396,075

79,s7 6

))1 ))1

342,797

233,608

2,160,000

372,435

108,950

285,000

i,700,000

3,r46,462

49,000

,o5 ir?
776,500

4,068

1,500,000

423,750

621,500

1,191,363

1,867,408

2,044.r0-1

672,1t9

r2,206.385

2,354.964

114,263

132,5t4

685

16,111

I 90,588

909,633

91'.7<

2t4,096

50,012

208,502

3,750

r 00,000

1,103,914

565,000

585,000

31,695

339,078

130, t 68

33,000

5,000

1 0,366

35,96 I

396,075

79,576

227,227

7A) 141

233,608

2, I 60,000

372,435

1 08.950

285,000

1,700.000

3,146,462

49,000

,q551?

776,500

4,068

1,500,000

4n,754
62 i.500

1,191.363

1,867.408

2,041,107

672.119

12,206,385

2,354,964

114,263

132,514

685

16,1 r I

i 90,588

909,633

9. )7\

214.096

50,012

208,502

3,750

100.000

1,103,9i 4

565.000

585,000

31 ,69-s

339,078

r30,168

33,000

5,000

10,366

35,961

396,075

79,576

))1 ))'7

342,797

233,608

2, I 60,000

WF
19 37.846.419 19TotaI
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Chirkhrva Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Civil Construction Work Sub Note 8.2

2 Partieulars As on lst Addition during
Shrarvan,2079 the year

As on 3lst Addition during As on 3lst
Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh,2081

Gabion Work

IPC Civil Works

Civil Works Wages

Consultancy Expenses

Project Civil Expenses

Grouting

Headrace

228,965,854

269,800

t2,030,776

I0,03 0.000

2s6,000

79,660,622

256,000

308,626,476

269,800

t2,030,7'76

10,030,000

37,914,602

621,451

256.000

346,541,078

269,800

12,030,776

1 0,030,000

621,451

)+3,504

Total
543,364

257,839,794

543,364

79,916,622 3311756,416 38,536,053 370,292,469

Electro Mechanical Works Sub Note 8.3

3 Particulars As on lst Addition during
Shrarvan,2079 the year

As on 31st Addition during As on 31st
Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh,2081

Bank Charge

Eot Crane

Anchor Rod for Crane Beam

Battery

Crane Accessories

Custom Expenses

Embedded Pipes and Drain Box

Electro-Mechanical Expenses

Hydraulic Oil

UC Charge

Machinery and Ass Part

Electro-Mechanical Parts

Elecao-Mechanical Runner Insurance

Allowances

Custom Relating Expenses

EM Powerhouse Equipment

Transportation Expenses

2,500

5,1 8 r,600

143,763

544,000

1,588,082

58 1,400

25,800

r,0rt,225

407,130

57,522,560

I i,389,000

(s,i 81,600)

(544,000)

7 45,739

(s81,400)

749.892

i i 8,396,75 l
(s7,522,560)

(1 1,389.000)

2t7,189

5l 9,451

1,896,501

2,500

r43,763

2,333,821

25,800

r,'7 6t,t t7
I 18,803,881

2t7,t89

5 19,45 r

1,896,501

344,000

t99,679

1,418,462

159,048

34,01 0

4),O)l

i7,010

2,500

t43,763

344,000

2,533,500

1,444,26;

I _s9,048

r,7 95,127

1 18,849,533

217,189

t 7,0 10

519,451

1,896,501

Total 78,397,059 47,306,964 125,704,023 2,217,861 127,927,984

Hyrlro Mechanical Worhs Sub Note 8.4

4 Particulars As on lst Addition during
Shrarvan, 2079 the year

As on 3lst Addition during
Ashad,2080 the year 80-81

As on 31st

Ashadh,2081

Custom Expenses

HM Expenses

Headrace Pipe

UC Charge

MS Pipe

Penstock Pipe

Pipe Transpotation Expenses

Pipe Work

Wages Welder

3,049,272

671 ,579

10,650.456

613,176

34,400,8 i 8

12,948,390

234,095

1 1,t72.513

217,412

i,125,908

15,000

206,595

3 i,266,988

3,049,272

677,579

70,650,4s6

613,t7 6

)l'.1 41)

34,400,818

14,074,298

1 5,000

436,690

42.439.501

3,049,272

723,605

70,650,456

6t3,t76

2t7,4t2

34,400,818

t4,074,298

15,000

436,690

42,439.50t

46,426

Mechanical Works

^@S=/</ %
133,742,299Total



Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the tr'inancial Statements
As on Ashadh 3lst, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Transmission Line anrl Srvitchvard Sub Note 8.5

5 Particulars
As on 1st Addition during

Shrarvan,2079 the year
As on 31st Addition during As on 3lst

Ashad,2080 thc year 80-81 Ashadh,2081

Transmission Line and Civil Work Wages

Transnission Line Compensation

IEE oftransmission line

Tabular Pole for Transmission line

Transformer

Transmission and Switchyard

JS Meter

Electric Ware

Site Expenses

Transmission Line Testing and Commissioning

Civil Work of Transmission Line

Transportalion Expenses

Tranmission Line Inspection-Meeting Allowance

Land Compensation

Other Transmission Line Conrpensation

Transmission Line Expenses

Transmission Line Phase -2 Expenses

Transmission Line Renew Expenses

Transmission Line Work

Transmission Line Work-Phase I Expenses

622,317

282,500

844,024

) )7d 7)\
'739,063

26.89s,649

70,000

323,862

8,054,625

799,746

372,900

)no 1L1

1,131,079

30,000

872,586

622,311

799,746

655,400

844,024
) )'117)\

739,063

209,247

28,026,728

100,000

r,t96,448

8,054,625

5,287,210

41 ,289

622,3t7

6,086,956

702,689

844,024
) )'ta 1)\

739.063

r,695,000

27,600

s36,905

458,824

1, r 05,496

5 t,7 54

I 5 8,915

44,000

30,3 10

355,245

28,026,728

I00,000

1,196,448

8,054,625

1,695,000

27,600

536,905

458,824

i ,l 05,496

51,754

158,91 5

44,000

30.310

145,998

Total 40,106,365 3,415,558 43,521,923 9,589,301 53,111,224

Inl'rastructure Development Works Sub Note 8.6

6 Particulars
As on 1st Addition during

Shrarvan,2079 the year
Addition during As on 31st

the year 80-81 Ashadh, 2081

As on 3lst
Ashad,2080

Access Road Construction

Construction Materials

Access Road ['ages

Hume Pipe

2s,934,000

417,268

l 09,999

25,934.000

4t7,268

109,999

782,938

25,934.000

782,938

4t7,268

109,999

Total 26,461,267 26,461,267 782,938 27)244,205

Environment/ Social Mitigation Cost Sub Note 8.7

Particulars As on 1st Addition during
Shrawan,2079 the year

As on 31st Addition during As on 31st
Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh, 2081

Contribution to Road Construction

Donation

Compensation Expenses

Social Cost

Environment Protection Expenses

Project Alloivance to DFO

68"1,700

9 r ,000

852,027

2,045,494
5q ?<n

I 74.000

1.438,056

200,000

687,700

265,000

2,290,083

2,245,494

59,250

52-s.660

67,900

600,890

215,000

1,213.360

332,900

600.890

2,505.083

2,245,494

sq ?io

Total 3,735,470 1,912,057 5,547,527 1,409,450 6,956,977ffir@ ft\
- \9.
;il"',)'6
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Chirkhrva Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Project Supervision and Nlanagement Cost Sub Note 8.8

8 Particulars As on lst Addition during
Shrawan, 2079 the year

As on 31st Adrlition during As on 3lst
Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh,2081

AGM Expenses

Audit Fee

Amini Expenses

Advertisment Expenses

Book & Periodicals

Bank Charge

Certification Charge

Consultancy Expenses

Chirkh'rva Credit Rating

Consultancy Fee

Dashain Allowance

DOED Meeting Allorvance

Depleciation

Eletricity Expenses

Exim Code Renew

Fine

Fuel Expenses

Goods (Loading Unloading)

Gratuity Fund

GPO Box Renewal

Guest Refreshment-Site

Hydropower Operation & Maintenance

Installation Fee-CCTV

lntemet and Telephone Exp

Interest

Issure Rating

Kitchen Utensil for Site Expenses

Land Expenses

Legal Charge

Meeting Expenses

Meeting Allowance

Meeting Allowance-NEA

Montly Consultancy Fee

Nea Grid

Notary Expenses

Office Expenses

Offi ce Refreshment Expenses

Penalty

PG Interest Charge

PPA Bank Gurantee Expenses

PPA BG Margin

Priniting and Stationery Expenses

Project Electricity NEA
Project Equipment

Project Expenses

Project Fooding and Lodging

Project Room Hile
Project Transportation and Travelling

Publication Expenses

Renewal Expenses

13.750

50,850

46,324

t9,200

10,346

3394

3,278,100

195,0 i 9

17 .135,t25

1,898,1 39

25,443

2,000

32,565

724,072

2,437

62^941

15,000

i 63.984

1,03 0

6,780

r,5 I 9,850

23 1,08s

7,410,523

323,724

12,480

1,500

o )?,

862,10s

139,7 55

1 12,1 t0

76,69r

65,850

46,324

1 83,1 84

I t,37 6

t0,r70
4,797,950

426.104

24,545,648

2,22r,863

37,523

3,500

41,797

1,586,177

139,'.l 55

1 12,1 l0
) A1'7

10,000

3.390

1,789,920

428,859

l4,t I 8

2,866

65,764

657,739

90,5 88

5,299,558

11,280

3,000

62,470

80,000

474,600

7,931

-30,000

-285.000

3t4,356

1,530.190

7 6,69]1

6_5.850

10,000

46,324

1 83,1 84

1 1.376

I 3,560

4,797,950

426,1A4

26.335.568

428,859

14,1 I 8

2,221,863

40,389

3,500

1 07.s6 1

2,243,9t6

r39,7 55

I 12,1 l0
2,437

90,588

5 ?00 5iR

l 1,280

1.25,025

296,938

?54 ?{O

62,470

795.53 I

86,8 10

46,330

1,302,240

80,000

474,600

50,000

41,000

r02,566

30,tt7
216.682

1,000,000

89,700

300,3 80

2,'722,066

301,000

1.465,443

6,4't2,390

90,000

1.02"t,5tt

9,695

6,400

i 01,826

296,938

254,250

56,810

40.680

7s5,534

20,t99

795,53t

30,000

5.650

546,706

1) I \')

43,942

31.200

130,3 65

8 r 9.948

803.98 7

1,768,324

494,755

9,695

t22,025

296,938

254,250

795.53t

86,810

46,330

1,302,240

50,000

4 t,000

72,483

30,1t7

t-|2,740

1,000.000

85,500

285,000

i 70,015

1,581,762

3 0 i,000

661,456

3,t73.876

90,000

43 1,501

50,000

41,000

94,635

30,1 17

216,682

1,000,000

1 I9,700

285,000

300.380

2,407,710

301 ,000

1,465,443

4,942,200

90,000

926.256

9.695

:_:_i.".
'r.-
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Chirkhrva Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Sub Note 8.8.Project and Management Cost

I Particulars
As on lst Addition during

Shra'rvan, 2079 the Year

As on 31st Addition during As on 31st

Ashad,2080 the year 80-81 Ashadh, 2081

Continued...
Rent

Registration and Renewal

Repair and Maintainance

Site Office Expenses

Site Project Compensation

Salary & Wages

Share I-agat Expenses

Telephone Expenses

Travelling Allowances

Tiffen Expenses

Turbine Insurance

Transportation Expenses

Under Writing Expenses

Courier Charges

IPO Expenses

Project Maintenance Cost

Upper Project Supervision

Upper EM Runner lnsurance

Upper Generator Insu'ance

Vehicle Renerval

Vehicle Insurance

Verification Consultancy Fee

Vehicle Hire

Valuation Fee

Wages

Webpage Expenses

2,945,262

3 86,900

1,108,641

27,767,6;4

200,000

7 43,559

498,952

775

300,000

317,084

61.000

42t,92r

65,665

9,468,280

154,000

101,3 95

I 14,615

8,3'17

1,141,450

44,665

815,255

146,446

30,1 t8

19.5 86

3.262,346

447,900

1,530,562

65,665

37,235,944

200,000

897,559

600,347

1 1 5,390

300,000

8,377

1,141,450

44,665

8 1 s,255

146,446

30,1 18

105,1 54

I 1,300

2,023.655

22.347

347,125

43,075

8,050,275

9,800

37,741

6t9,257

61 .650

17,475

3 10,750

r 50,000

3,262,346

44'7,900

1,87'7,687

43,07s

65.665

45,286,219

200,000

9,800

897,559

600,34'7

37,741

1 15,390

300,000

8,377

1,141,450

44,665

815,255
"165,703

30,1 i8

6 1,650

t22,629

3 10,750

150,000

I i,300

2,023,65s

22,347

85,568

11,300

5 t3,799

17,647

1,509,856

4,700

67,67 4,913 98,496,880 118,783,310

Sub Note 8.9
Interest Construction

9 Particulars
As on 1st Addition during

Shranan,2079 the Year

Adtlition during As on 31st

the year 80-81 Ashadh,2081
As on 31st

Ashad,2080

Commitment Charge

Loan Processing Charge

lnterest on Bridge Gap Loan

lnterest Refund on Bridge GaP Loan

Interest on Term Loan

Interest Refund on Term Loan

1,126,875

26,331,45r

1 80,000

4,819,r47

49,468,302

t,126,875

180,000

4,8 19.107

15,799,753

t0,663,251

(408,068)

49,053,916

1,126,875

r 80"000

i _s,482,358

(408,068)

124,8s3,669

t,390,474) ( 1,390,4

Total

borrorving costs that are directly attributable to tlie

Bonowing costs).

27

construction

54,461,409 57,918,625 139,

of qualiSing assets as part cost ofthat assets.(As per

a\ b. z.W'K
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15th Iuly,2024)

Other Non Current Assets Note 9

S.N. Parficulars As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashatlh 3lst, As on Shrarvan Lst,

208f 2080 (Restated\ 2079 (Restated)
I Share Investrnent in LC Energy Limited*
2 Security Deposit

Nepal Telecom

GPO Box Security Deposit

50,000

750

1.500

50,000

750

1,500

50,000

750

1,500

Total 52,250 52,250 52,250
* The Company had made investment of NRs. 50,000 in LC Energy Limited. The company has plan to hold the investment for long tenn and
not lor sale. Investments are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI) as per NFRS-09 "Financial Instrurnent"
since its initial recognition date. Management ofthe company has considered the cost ofinvestment as fair value since the latest share price of
the investee company has traded at cost.

Cash and Cash Equivalenfs Note 10

S,N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrarvan lst.
208r 2080 (Restated) 2079 (Restafed)

A
1

B

i

Cash in Hand
Cash in l{and
Balance rvith Banks
Agriculnrral Development Bank Limited (Current A/C-Itahari
Branch)

Agriculture Development Batk Lirnited (Current A,/C-Khadbari
Blanch)
Century Commercial Bank Limited (Current A/C)
Citizens Bank Limited (Current A/C)
Laxmi Sunrise Bank Limited (Current A/C)
Nabil Bank Linrited (Current A/C)
NMB Bank (Current A,/C)

Rastriya Banijay Bank Ltd (Current A-iC)

Rastriya Banijay Bank Ltd (Loan A/C)
Rastriya Banijya Bank Ltd (Current,A,rC-Dingla Branch)
Rastriya Banijay Bank Ltd (ESCROW A/C)

14,4t9

/,)J /

r4,390

)) \7'7

I \ 71'l

5,000

9,975
10,715

256,043
3,063
6.059

3,000

I 0,545

7.337

14,390

22,s37
t5,727
5,000

9,975
i 0.715

4i 1,359

20,083,240
5,027

46

7,337

t4,390

)) 471

30,742

5,000
o 475

10,7 t 5

324, r 83

51,234,337

3,37 r

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

i0
11

Total 368.264 20.s95.852 51.662.633

Tratle Receivables Note 11

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 3lst, As on Ashadh 3lsto As on Shrarvan Lst,
2081 2080 (Restated\ 2$79 (Restafed)

I Nepal ElggtricityAuthority NEA) 4,935,862
Total 4.935,862

Income Aom sale of electricity is booked on rnonthly basis as per the invoice raised by company and issued to Nepal Electricity Authority
(NEA). The amount is receivable fi'om NEA within 45 days of issue of invoice. The receivable amount from NEA as on reporting date
represents the income fi'om sale of energy for the month ofAshadh, 208 I . Trade Receivable is non-interest bearing in nature.

Margins and Deposits Note 12

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st,

2081

As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shratvan lsto
2080 fRestated\ 2079 (Restated)

I Margin for Letter of Creditx

2 Margin for Bank Guaranteexx

6,096,061

3 I 5,000

6,096,061 22,693,133

*Letter of Credit(LC) Margin
Electromechanical parts.
**Bank Guarantee Margin has

Department of the Customs.

Total 22,693,133
has been retained by Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited against Letter of Credit(LC) issued for irnport of

been retained by Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited against Bank Guarantee issued for Exirn Code to the

64PS*4 %\

("x
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15th July,2024)

Other Current Assets Note 13

S.N. Particulars
2081

As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 3lst, As on Shlawan 1st,

2080 (Restated) 2079 (Resfated)

A MobilizationAdyances
I Precise Hydro Engineering and Construction Private Limited
2 Rabin Nirman Sewa Private Limited
3 P.S. Construction Company Private Limited
B Advance to Contractors
I Gorkha Hydro and Engineering Private Limited
2 Neppower Enterprises Private Limited
3 P.S Consh'itction Company Private Lirnited
4 Precise Hydro Engineering and Construction Private Limited
C Advances to Parties
I Bnddha Subba Haldrvare
2 Globai Shipping and Air Cargo Private Lin.rited
3 Gorkha Parta Coporation
4 Lower Erkhwa Hydropower Company Lirnited
5 LC Energy Limited
6 Prabhukilan Computer
7 RBB Merchant Banking Limited
8 SARP Engineering Private Lirnited
9 Sriya Clealing Agency
10 Talegan IT Private Limited
ll TNDAssociates
D Other Advances
I Advance Tax
2 Site StaffAdvance
3 Land Advance+

4 SiteStaffSaiaryAdvance
5 Other Advances

6 Office Advance
E Prellairl Exllense

1,t70,292

842,586

3,937,282
2,602,600
) 6.'75 1A1

3,8 10,885

14,206,224

6,256,152

500.000

t,212,54;

i 00.000

213,780
4,839,999

t7,635.278

480,36S

I 85,800

1,853,54;

1,97 6.7 59

275,00;

43.55;
8,326

t6,g87,46;-

909,1 63

2,918,837

2,2t0
500,000

2.052
10,000

48

1 00,000

43,550

ot
315

213,780
7.282,667

t4,613,398

39,889

656"9g;
24,972.635 2s.537,846 58.656.S55

+Advance for land includes advance given to various person for acquisition ofland by the company. The company has opted to record the land
advance in its financial records, acknowledging the payrnent made towards acquiring the land, even though legal orvnership cannot yet be
transferred.

Share Capital Note 14

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrarvan lst,
2081 2080 fResfefed) 2079 fResfrfed)

Total

Authorized Capital
Ordinary shares ofNRs. 100 each.

Issued Capital
Ordinary shales of NRs. I00 each.

Subscribed and Paid Up Capital
2,800,000 Equiry Shares ofNRs. 100 each-Promorer share
i,200,000 Equity Shales ofNRs. 100 each-Public Issue

400,000,000

400,000,000

280,000,000
120,000,000

400,000,000

400.000,000

280,000,000

400,000,000

400,000.000

280,000.000

Total 400,000,000 280,000,000 280.000.000
Paid up share capita.l is an ordinary equity share capital ftilly paid up having equal voting right.

Reconciliation of No. of Shares Outstanding Note 14.1

S.N Parficulars As on Ashadh 31st As on Ashadh 31st,
2081 2080 fResf:rfed)

As on Shrarvan lst,
2079 (Restated)

ke'{ y:Kt

2,800,000I Balance at the beginning ofthe year
2 Add: Public Issr.re of Shares*

3 Add:Bonus Shares

2,800.000

1,200,000

r90,248
2,609,752-

*Refbr Note 37 for more details (+\
\a
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-I0, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15th luly,2024)

Reserve and Surplus Note 15

S.N. Particulars
As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st, As ou Shrarvan lst,

2081 2080 (Restated) 2079 (Restated)

1 Opening Balance
2 Add:Profit or Loss during the year

3 Less:Expenses Related to h,rblic Issue*

(4,277,393)
(1s,92t,697)
(3,533,705)

(1,716,741)
(t,419,202)
(1,141,450)

t4,267
('1 ,73 1,008)

Total 03.732.795) G.277.393\ 0.71,6.74t\
*Cost attributable to issue to Public oftbr (Initial Public Offering) has been cirarged to reserve and surplus directly. Such cost includes fee paid

to Securities Board of Nepal (SEBON), Electricity Regulatory Authority @RC), Underwriting Commission, Issuer Rating Expenses, IPO

Registrations expenses & Other related expenses.

Advance for Share Capital Note 16

S.N. Particulars
As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st,

2081 2080 (Restated)
As on Shrarvirn lst,

2079 (Restated)

I Amount received but share not allotted

Total

Long term Loans and Borrowings Note 17

S.N. Particulars
As on Ashadh 3lst, As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrarvan 1st,

2081 2080 (Restatcd\ 2079 (Restated)

A Secured Loan
I Term Loan-Rastriya Banijya Bank Lirnited
2 Less:Current Maturity of Term Loanx

550,5 18,441

(3,1 53,000)
547,663,090 4 13,988,700

Total 547,365,441 547,663,090 413,988,700

The company has entered a financial credit tacility rvith Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited for the development of the Upper Chirkhrva

Hydropower Project (4.70 MW) located at Bhojpur District. The credit facility is being utilized exclusively for the construction and

development of this project, in accordance rvith the telms outlined in the agreement. The company is actively servicing the loan through
periodic repa).rnents, strictly adhering to the repayment schedule and the conditions stipnlated in the agreement.

Loan has been secured against registered mortgage over ofthe entire assets ofthe project (present and to be created in future) inciuding the

iand, buiiding , plant and machinery, movable and immovabie assets on land owned (including lease hold land) by the cornpany and entire
present/future current assets ofthe project including receivable liour NEA and against registered nortgage ofpersonal real estate properties

provided by the promoter.
*Loans scheduled for repayrnent rvithin one year from the reporting date are categorized as short-term liabilities as Current Maturity ofTerrn
Loan that is essential for presenting a precise and transparent piclure ofthe company's near-term financial commitments.

Lease liabilitv Note 18

S.N Particulars As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 3lst, As on Shrarvan 1st,

2081 2080 (Restated) 2079 (Restated)

I Lease Liabilit/ 2,94t,566
2 Less:Current Portion oflease Liability** (522.232) - -

.TL*.orq*t), I

Use Asset and corresponding lease Liability in Staternent ofFinancial Position.
x*Lease Liability scheduled for repayment within one year lrom the reporting date are categorized as Current liabilities as clrrrent portion of
lease liabilitv.

ax
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Chirkhn a Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Aslradh 31st,2081 (i5th luly,2024)

Deferred Tax Liabilities(Net) Note 19

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st,

2081

As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shratvan 1st,
2080 (Rest:rted\ 2t119 (Resfrfpdl

Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets

1 Writtel Dorvn Value (WDV) as per Company Act (A)

2 Written Down Value (WDV) as per Income Tax Acr(B)

3 Timing Difference (A-B)

4 Rate of Incorne Tax applicable to company

5 Amonnt of Tax recognized in Statement of Income

, Deferred Tax Assets/(Liability) recognized in statement ofo Financial Position

Lease Liability
1 Net Carrying Amount

Carrying Amount of Lease Liability

Carrying Amount of Right of Use Asset(ROlll

2 Tax Base of the Liability(B)

3 Timing Difference (A-B)

4 Rate of lncome Tax applicable to company

5 Amonnt of Tax recognized in Statement of Income

- Del'erred Tax Assets/(Liability) recognized in statement ofo Financial Position

60,628

2,94t,566

2.880,938

60,628

0% 0%

r,082,4r0,549

1,08 1,955,70 l
454,848

0%

42,779,976

42,779,916

0o/o

36,397,t70

36,397,t70

00,/o

0%

TotaI
The tax exemption as per the provisions of section 1 I (3 Gha) of Income Tax Act, 2058 is applicable for the financial year 2080i8 1 (i.e. the
company is assessed at 0%o tax rates for first i 0 years of operation and 50o/o tax rate for later 5 years). Accorclingly, the tax rate applicable to
the company for the year is 0% . As a result, no current tax expense or defelred tax liability has been recognized in the financial statements for
this period. The company will be subject to a 50o/o concession on fhe applicable tax rate (20%) for the subsequent 5 years after the tax holiday
period ends. Deferred tax calculations will consider these tax concessions in furure periods as required.

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st,

2081

As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrarvan 1st,
2080 fRestated) 2079 (Restated)

A Secured Loan fromBank
1 Bridge Gap Loan-Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited
2 Loan against IPo-Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited
3 Add:Current Maturity of Term Loan*
B Unsecured Loan**

Loan from Directors
I Dipak Rai
2 Atg Dorji Lama
3 Dawa Shlestha
4 Ganesh Man Singh Karki
5 Kedar Nath Karki

Loan from Shareholders
1 Bir Bahadur Rai
2 Mingma Kanchi Sherpa

3 Biswo Shrestha

4 Gelje Lama
Loan from Others

I Ang Jangmu Lama
2 Nagwang Thogme Lama
3 Nagwang Thogme Lama / Ongchhu Lama
4 Ongchhu Lama

t4,549,990

3,153,000

250,00;
248,800

900,000

450,000

250,000
9.000,000

I,650,000
2,800,000

7,500,000

8,000,000

14,000,000

7,000,000

9,500,000
72,000,000

t,464,896
8,000,000

1,700,000

2,800,000

8,000,00;
14,000,000

30,000,000

72,000,000

oV*
s_=* r

69.751.790 117.464-896 1 02-000-000Total
*Refer Note 17 for mole details.
*+The company has obtained interest-free rmsecured short-ter.m
operating cycle ofthe company.



Chirkhwa Hydroporver Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15rh luly,2024)

Trade and Other Payables Note 21

S.N. Particulars As on Ashadh 31st As on Ashadh 3lst,
2081 2080 (Resf:rfed)

As on Shrarvan 1st,
2079 (Restated)

A Trade Payable
I Ajay Store

2 Apollo Trade Link
3 Buddha Subba Hardware
4 CDS and Clearing Liorited
5 Gorkha Hydro and Engineering Private Limited
6 Hydro Infrastructui'e Consulting Services Private Limited
7 Kandel and Associates

8 KandelandAssociates-Partnership
9 Kwality Banquet

l0 Lumbini Engineering and Hydropower Private Limited
11 LC Energy Limited
12 Lumbini General Insurance Company Lirnited
13 Media Master Concept Private Limited
14 Mecatridi IIPP lndia Private Limited
i5 N. E. S. Power Company Private Limited
16 New Manakamana Holel and Lodge
l7 Nepal Elcctricity Authoriry
18 Priyanka Stores

19 Precise Hydro Engineering and Construction Private Limited
20 P.S Construction Company Private Limited
21 RBB Merchant Banking Lirnited
22 Rabin Nirman Sewa Private Limited
23 Saket Acharya and Associates

24 Satbise Construction Private Limited
2-5 Sitala Jalpa Devi Construction
26 Sunshine Kirana Pasal and Khaja Ghar
27 Sarsij Travels and Tours
28 Sudip Iron Suppliers

29 SARP Engineering Private Limited
30 Tirnes Media
31 Three Dimensional Freight and Cargo Private Lirnited
B Retention Payable
1 Precise Hydro Engineering and Construction Private Limited
2 P.S Construction CornpanyPrivate Limited
3 Rabin Nirman Sewa Private Limited
C Other Payables
I Audit Fee Payable

2 House Rent Payable

3 Interest Payable*

4 Social Cost Payable

5 Site Expenses Payable

6 Meeting Allowance Payable

7 Land Palable
D Payable to Staffs
1 SalaryPayable(Annexure-1)

2 PettyPayables

rc,sg;
277 ,7 13

r,t25,753
t22,650

t39,375
55,750

r92,t49
70,296_

t6,725
5,806,378
2,005,476

t07,740

i 5,130

4r,58t,T;
140,000

3,877,281
3s1.225

103.902

7,50;
257,453

r,877,854
r 3.656,039

t,596,520

334.500

41,832.890
75,000

1,347,955
i,052,0 I 5

2,313,43s

22.64r

tR4?5

t,277,694

267,600
167,250_

483,694
682,405

67,859

5,808,990

60,09;

4,64s,409
23,696,807

6,277,28r
r95,t25

2n3s;
22,400

2,704

557,45;

13,656,039

I,877,854
t,596,520

14,775

22,050

30,000

t,397,63t
320,000

9,900

1,737,264

295,475
55,7s0

227,7g;

10,000

I 3,905, l 70

78,050
9,867,2s7

7,g;

28,7s0

$g.24;

494.359
i0,13 1,233

r,546,472

16,725

25,500

15,000

39 r,698
70,000

250,000

1,037,8,18

Total r20,379.977 65.105.577 39.094.233
*The interest on the loan. u'hich accrued for the third and fourth quarter ofFY 2080/081 was outstanding as ofthe reporting date. However,
the accrued interest was firlly settled as ofthe date ofadoption ofthe financial staternents by the Board ofDirectors.
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15th July,2024)

Lease Iiabilifv Note 22
S.N Particulars

, 2081

As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrawan lst,
2080 fResfeted) 2O79 (Rpsfrfed)

I Curlent Portion oflease Liabilitv* 5)1 )1)
522.232

Other Curent Liabilities Note 23

S.N. particulars As on Ashadh 31st, As on Ashadh 31st, As on Shrarvan Ist,
. 2081 2080 (Restated) 2079 (Restated)
I Duties and Taxes(Annexure-2)*
2 Prolisions and Other Liabilities

Provision for Income Tax**
Provision for Staff Bonus

Fine for Late COD Payable

Provision for fixed Royalty

1,559,360 2,502.681 t,596,'t35

3.296,22;
470,000

Total 5.325.580 2.502.681 1,596.735
*The Company has deducted withholding taxes as per Income Tax Act, 2058. The interest on the outstanding amount of TDS has not been
shorvn in the books ofaccount.
**The company has not made provision for current tax due to entitlernent to Tax holiday of 10 years liom cornrnencernent of commercial
operation as per the Section 1 1(3Gha) oflncome Tax Act, 2058. The comrnercial operation ofcornpany was started on 20th Jestha, 2081. For
details refer Note l9
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Revenue from Operation Note 24
Year Ended 31st Year Ended 3lsts'N' 

'uttitu'ot' ornuuo, ro*, ornu.lo, ,uru
1 Revenue from Sale ofElectricity 1t,t94,752

11,194,752
The conrmercial operation of company was started from 20th Jestha 208 l.The company issnes invoice to Nepal Electricity Authority (NEA) on
monthly basis and amount is receivable witirin 45 days of issue of iuvoice as per internal rnemo of NEA. Revenue is measured as the fair value of
consideration received or receivable and accordingly revenue is recognized as per the rnemo ofNEA.

Cost of Sales Note 25

Total

S.N. Particulars Year Ended 3lst Year Ended 31st
Ashadh.2081 Ashadh.2080

I BackFeedEnergy
2 Revenue Royalty Expense

3 Fixed Royalty Expense

4 Short Supply Charge+

5 Insurance Expenses

6 Salary and Allowances-Site Office
7 Site office Expenses

8 Repair and Maintenance

9 Fine for Late COD**

13,176

223,63r
56,658

862.590

77,855

489,935

45,730

1,036,899

8,455.712

Total 11,262,187
*The Company has incurred short supply charges as per the terms of the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) with the Nepal Elechicity Authority
(NEA). Under the PPA, the Cornpany is required to deliver a minimum quantity of electricity, and any shortfall in supply results in a pe1a1ty.
The short supply charges has been recognized as per the internai memo issued by NEA to the conrpany.
*'*As of the reporting date, the project has incurred a fine for failing to meet the Required Commerciai Operation Date (RCOD) as stipulated in
the Power Purchase Agreement (PPA) signed with the Nepal Eiectricity Authority (NEA). The project was delayed due to various reasons. As
per tlre agreement, the project is liable to a fine of NRs. 84,55,712. The remaining fine is recognized as a liability and has been settled as on the
date of adoption of financial Statements by Board ofDirectors.

Other Income Note 26

S.N. particulars Year Ended 3lst Year Ended 31st

I Other lncome

Employee Benefit Expenses Note 27

S.N. Particulars Year Entled 31st Year Ended 31st
Ashadh.2081 Ashadh. 2080

1 StaffSalary& Allonance Expenses 951,548 696,000

Total 951"548 696,000
The company does not have any scheme of employrnent benefits other than salary and allowance. Accordingly, the company has not made
provisions for any liabilities relating to employees which arise on account ofaccumulated leave, provident fund, etc. in accordance with Labor
Act, 2074 and has neither been registered with Social Security Frmd as per the provision of Contibution based Social Secrnity Act, 2074 as on
reporting date.
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Administrative Expenses Note 28

S.N. particulars Year Ended 31st Year Ended 31st

Ashadh,2081 Ashadh,2080
I AGM Expenses

2 Advance Land Tax Wrinen off
3 AdvertisementExpenses
4 Audit Fee

5 Bank Charge

6 Meeting Allowance
7 Fooding and Lodging
8 Fine andPenalties

9 Guest Refreshment

10 lntemet and Telephone Expenses

I I Inauguration Expenses

12 Office Expenses

13 Office Refreshment Expenses

14 Printing and Stationery

15 Repair and Maintenance

16 RentExpenses*

17 Site Office Expenses

18 ShutDorvnExpenses

19 Travelling Expenses

375,899
2t3,780

16,950
340,950

49.6t9
994,tt9
242,753

76,804
105,657

2tt,849
259,686

41,621

133,075

85,750

25,890
34,465
40,910

15,000

53,174

130,36;

3 17,084

3,249,776 515,623
*The company did not apply NFRS 16 - Leases to its previous iease agreement, as it qualified for the short-temr lease exemption under NFRS
16.

Howevet, the company has entered into a new lease agreement during the current period effective fi'om i l th Fatgun,2080 for lease term of live
years.. As such, NFRS 16 has been applied to the new lease agreernent. The company has recognized a right-of-use asset and a lease liabiiity at

the corunencement date of the lease, with subsequent measrrement in accordance with the requirements of NFRS 16.

Depreciation and Amorfization Expenses Note 29

S.N. Particulars

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment
Amortization of Intangible Assets

Depreciation on Right of Use Assets

Year Ended 31st Year Ended 31st

2081 2080
18,63 8 r99,556

8,0234,724,932
261.903

5,205,373 207,579

Finance Costs Note 30

S.N. Particulars Year Ended 31st Year Ended 3lst

2 Interest Expenses on Lease Liability** 140,391

Total 6,447,565

'"Ihe company has entered into credit facility agreernent for the project financing with Rastriya Banijya Bank Limited for the developrnent of
the Upper Chikhwa Hydropower Project (4.70 MW) & shall capitaiise borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the aquisition,
construction ofproject ofclualifying assest as part ofthe cost ofthat assets and after the generation ofthe Electricity same has been charged in
the Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (As per NAS 23-Borrowing costs).

+*Rel'er note 45 lbr rnore details.
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal
Notes forming part of the Financial Statements

Earnings Per Share Note 3l

s.N. Particulars Year Endetl 3lst
Ashatlh. 2081

Year Ended 3Lst
Ashadh.2080

I Net Protlt
2 No of Shares Outstanding
3 Weighted Average Nunrber of Shares

(ts,92r,697)
4,000,000

3,644,932

(1,4t9,202)
2,800,000
2,800,000

(0.s 1)4 Basic Eamings per Share (4.37)
The weighted average number of shares outstanding for the calculation of Basic and Diluted Eamings Per Share (EPS) has been rletermined
based on the shares outstanding as ofthe reporting date. In accordance with NAS-33, the weighted average number ofshares is calculated by
taking into account any changes in the nrunber of shares during the reporting period.The company does not have any potential equify shares.
Hence, Diluted Ealnings per Share has not been calculated.

Calculation of 'rveighted a\rerage number of Shares

S.N
Share Issued

Date
Shares Outstanding

No ofdays
0utstanding

Weighted averag€
Equity Share
Outstanding

I 2080.04.01 2,800,000 365 2,800,000
2 2080.07. I 6" 1,200,000 257 844,932

Total 3,644,932
issued shares to cuTent EPScolnpany has issued shares to public during year, purpose calculation, date on which the share amount

become receivable i.e. allotment date has been taken.
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CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Poticies and Explanatory Notes f,'orming part of
tr'inancial Statements for FY 2080/81

Note 32: Income Tax
The Company has started its commercial generation, distribution, and h'ansmission of electricity in 20th Jestha,
208i and has been invoived in the commerciai generation, distribution, and transmission of electricity in the
current fiscal year 2080/81. Hence, the tax exemption as per the provisions of section I I (3 Gha) of Income Tax
Act,2058 is applicable for the financial year2080/81 (i.e. the company is assessed atAYotux rates for frst 10
years of operation and 50%o tax tate for later 5 years). Accordingly, the tax rate appiicable to the company for the
year is 0%. As a result, no current tax expense or defeired tax liabitity has been recognized in the financial
statements for this period. The company will be subject to a 50Yo concession on the applicable tax rate (20%o) for
the subsequent 5 years after the tax hoiiday period ends. Defered tax calculations will consider these tax
concessions in fufure periods as required.

Note 33: Post- Employment Benefits
Thc conipany docs not havc any schcmc of cmploymcnt bcncfits othcr than salary and allowancc. Accordingly,
the company has not made provisions for any liabilities relating to employees which arise on account of
accumulated leave, provident fund, etc. in accordance with Labor Act, 2A74 and has neither been registered with
Social Security Fund as per the provision ofContribution based Social Securify Act, 2074 as on reporting date.

Note 34: Provision for Bonus
Provision for an ctnploycc bontts is providcd as pcr thc piovisions of thc ElcctricityAct, 2049 atd Elcctricity
Regulation 2050 (i.e. 2Yo ofret profit). Provision is created as per annual profit and paid in the subsequent period
as per the provisions of Bonus Act, 2030. Unspent amounts, if any, are transferred to Welfare Funds as per the
provisions of Bonus Act. 2030.Since the company has incurred loss during the curent financial year, no such
provisions have been created.

Note 35: Provision for CSR Expenses
As per Section 54 of the Industrial Enterprises Act,2076, rnedium, large industries, or cottage and small industries
rvith annual turnot er of more than NRs l 5 crores shall allccate at least 19lc of the annual net profit cf each fiscal
year to be utilized towards corporate social responsibility. Since the company has incurred loss during the current
financial i/ear, no such amcunt has been allocated.

Note 36: Royalty Expenses
The company has paid royalties as per the provision of the Electricity Act and Regulation. The generation royaity
is deducted at the rate of 2%o from sale of electricity from source i.e. by Nepal Electricity Authority on monthly
basis and Fixed capacity royalty @ NRs. 100 Per Kilo Watt P.A. is payable to Deparrment of Electricity
Development (pOED).

Note 37: Public fssue-Initial Public Offering (IPO)
he Company has appointed RBB Merchant Banking Limited as the Issue Manager and Sales Manager for its initial
Public Offering (IPO). Approval for the issuance of the IPO to the general public was granted by the Securities
Board of Nepal (SEBON) on 2tst Ashadh, 2080 BS, and the prospectus was registered with the Office of the
Company Registrar (OCR). As outlined in the prospectus, the Company issued 30%o of its issued share capital,
totaling 12,00,000 shares, at a price of NRs. 100 per share. The Company was listed with SEBON for the trading
of public shares on 4th Poush, 2080. The tra-ded price of the shares as of the reporting date of the financial
statements was NRs. 606.70 per share.

Note 38: Substantial Shareholder
The details of Shareholders holding more than 10lo of share capital and percentage of holding is given below which
is known as Substantial Shareholder of the company.

/t
i/o"
a.
9rtI>l

rq\7
\.,\

frr 6)l5t

#

\
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Number of
Shares Percentage
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I Gelje Lama (Bamti)
338,489 8.46%

): Gelje Larna (Deurali)
248,056 6.20%

lz Ang Maya Lama 220,016 5.50% t <
/1.l
Q, ,t Ang Kunga Lama 193.068 4.83% ti n eilfil';i!'-l'r;,4 Ang Dorji Larna

188,470

6 Ganesh Man Singh Karki 133,316 W ./
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s.N Name
Number of

Shares Percentage

1 Dambar Bahadur Karki 106.310 2.66%

8 Kedar Nath Karki 88.792 2.22%

9 Neera Shrestha Vaidya 88,309 2.21%

10 Dawa Jangmn Lama Shrestha 80,884 2.02%

11 Dipak Rai 78,900 t.97%

t2 Dinesh Thapa 69,826 1.75%

T3 Ganesh Budhathoki 66.647 1.61%

t4 Gorkha Hydro & Engineering Private Limited 59,009 1.48%

l5 Binaya Shrestha 56,516 1.41%

t6 Bijaya Shrestha 56,349 l.41Yo

t7 Ang Tendi Lama 50.916 1.27%

18 Prachanda Krular Malla 43,383 t.08%

t9 Jagdish Lal Baidya 4t.t5L 1.03%

20 Sharmila Basnet 40,627 1.02o/o

CHIRI(HWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

I(MC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes f,'orming part of
f inancial Statements for FY 2080/81

Note 39: Related Party Transactions
Related Party Transaciions are identified by the management. The company has identified transactions lvith
related parties during the period from 1st Shrawan, 2080 to 3lst Ashadh, 2081 as follows:

Key Management Personnel (KMP)
Kcy Managcrial Pcrsonal (KMP) arc thosc pcrsons having authoriry and rcsponsibility for planning, dirccting,
and controlling the activities of the entify, directly or indirectly. Such KMP include the board of Directors of the
company (including both Execuitive and Non Execuitive) and key employee who has holding directorship in the
Subsidiary company.

Transactions with Key lVlanagement Personnel (KMP) & Related Party:
The companies identifii following as related parties under requirements of NAS-24
" Subsidiary Company

Key Management Personnel Desisnation Status

Dipak Rai Chairman Re-aooointed

Kedarnath Karki Director Re-appointed

Ane Dorie Lama Director Re-appointed

Ganesh Man Singh Karki Director Re-aooointed

Dawa Jangmu Shrestha Lama Director Re-annointed

Aananda Mani Raut Director Re-appointed

Pratikshya Poudel Director(Female) Appointed w.e.f 208 1.03.23
D^L^l sL-^^+L^a arldu Jrltustrrd Indcpcndcnt Dircctor Rc-appointcd

Ane Tashi Lama Shema Independent Director Appointed w.e.f 208 1.03.23

Gelie Lama Director Resigned as on 2081.03.21
n^*L^- D^L.,1,,- T/ ^..1-:uoLLLUdt Ddllduur l\41[l n:-^^l^..uu lLtut Rcsigncd as on 2081.03.2i

Bir Bahadur Rai Director Resigned as on 2081.03.21

Prachet Kumar Shrestha Independent Director Resigned as on 2081.03.21

Dhanya Prasad Timsina Company Secretarrr

("x
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Shareholder holding 50lo or more shares during the year
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CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIN,IITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes X'orming part of
Financial Statements for FY 2080i81

Related Party Relation

Transactio
n During
the Year
2080-81

Outstandin
g as on 31st
Ashad,2080
(PayabIe)lR

eceivable

0utstanding as

on 3lst Ashad,
2081

(Payable)/Recei
vable

Nature of
Transaction

Gorkha Hydro and
Engineering

Private Limited

Substantial
Shareholder

1,594,000 (1,277,694) (122,650) Consultancy Fee

Kedarnath Karki Director
450,000 (450,000) Loan from Director

123,529 (40,000) (45,000) Meeting Allowance
Pavable

Pahad Shres'rha Director 64,746 (10,000) (4U,UUU,,
Meeting Allowance

Pavable
Prachet Kumar

Shrestha
Director 117,765 (10,000) (80,000)

Meeting Allowance
Pavable

Ang Dorje Lama Director

250,000
(8,000,000) (250,000)

Loan from Director
8,000.000 Repayrnent of Loan

94,1 18 (45,000) ( 125,000)
Meeting Allowance

Payable

Ganesh Man Singh
1{ ctl.i Director

900,000 (900,000) Loan from Director

'r.< aoA (35,000) (65,000)
Meeting Allowance

Payable

Dawa jangmu
Shrestha

Director
248,800 (248,800) Loan from Director

129,412 (45,000) ( 155,000)
Meeting Ailowance

Payable

Bir Bahadur Rai Previous Direotor

250,000
( t,70o,ooo) (250,000)

Loan from Director

1,7oo,ooo Repayment of Loan

47,059 (45,000) (85,000)
Meeting Allowance

Payable

Geije Lama
Substantial
Shareholder

(2,800,000) (2,800,000) Loan from Shareholder

(150,505) (150,505) Salary to Director

35,294 (30,000) (60,000) Meeting Allowance
Payable

Dipak Rai Chairman

1,g5o,o0o (107,695) (338,386) Salary to Director
1,464.896 ( 1.464.896) Repayment of Loan

l)Q 41) (45,000) (155,000) Meeting Allowance
Pavable

Dambar Bahadur
Karki

Director
94,1 1 9 ( r 5,000) (4s,000) Meeting Allowance

Payable
600,000 (252,450) (25,700) Salary to Director

Dhanya Prasad
Tirnsina

Company
Secretary

520,000 (66,324) (176,9t2) Salarv Pavable

129,412 (1 i0,000) Meeting Allowance
Pavable

LC Energy Limited
Entity in rnhich
directors having

significant control
682,405

z
(682,405)
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CHIRI(HWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-I0, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes Forming part of
tr'inancial Statements for FY 2080/81

Note 40: Audit Committee
The company's Audit Cotnrnittee is a key component oiits corporate goverxance frameword and is responsible
for overseeing the financial reporting process, the effectiveness of intemal controls, the audit process, and the
company's compliance with relevani laws and regulations.
The company's audit committee consists of following members:

Name of the Members Position

Ganesh Man Sinsh Karki Chairman

Kcdarnaih Karki ldcmbcrs

Ane Dorii Lama Members

Note 41: Commercial Operation Date
The construction of the project was completed during FY 2080/81 and the commercial operation of the company
started on 20th Jestha, 2081.

Note 42: Events after Reporting Period
There are no other adjusting subsequent events other than the cledit rating report from ICRA Nepal Limited. ICRA
Nepal Limited has issued an Issuer Rating to the company downgrading the long term rating of the company from
IICRANP] LBB-(pronounced ICRA NP L Double B Minus) to [ICRANP] LD (pronounced ICRA NP L D) and
the short term rating from [ICRANP] A4(pronounced ICRA NP A Four) to [ICRA NP] D (pronounced ICRA NP
D). lssuer with this rating are in default or are expected to be in default soon. Issuer Rating from the ICRA Nepal
Limited has been completed on, August 30,2024 and valid till i year fi'om the date of cornpletion.

Note 43: Contingent Liabilities and Other Commitments
Contingent liabilities are possible obligations whose existence will be contirmed by uncertain future events that
are not wholly withir the control of the entity. The Company during the course of its business has given the
tbllowing bank guarantee:

S.N. Particulars Purpose Beneficiary Amount

i Bank Guarantee For EXIM Code Department of Customs 3,00,000

2 Bank Guarantee Power Purchase Agreement Nepal Electriciry Authority 28,50,000

J
Letter of
Credit

Import of
Electrornechanical Parts

Mecamidi HPP India
Private Limited

i4,4d, jJU

4
Letter of
Credit

lmport of Electromechanical
Parts

Mecamidi HPP India
Private Limited 19,52,028

The following items have been reciassified for the

Previous Classification

PPA Bank Gnrantee

Proj ect Supervision and Management
(cwIP)

! NcPat2

Plant and Equipment (Non-

I

Note 44: Reclassification
better comparison and

S.N. Items Current
Classilication

Amount

(FY 2079-80)

I Duties and Taxes
Other Cun'ent
Liabilities Duties and Taxes 2,502,691

2 Margin and
Deposit

Froj ect Snper.uision and Management
(CWIP) 30,000

J PPA BG Margin
Margin and
Deposit 3,15,000

4 Intangible Assets
Intangible Assets
0$on-Current
Assets) 2

1

lr
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CHIRI(HWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overviewo Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes Forming part of
X'inancial Statements for FY 2080i81

S.N. Items Current
Classification

Previous Classification
Amount

(FY 207e-80)

5
Intangible Assets Under
Construction

Intangible
Assets Under
Construction

Capital Work in Progress (CWIP) 914,538.317

6 Payable to Director
Shofi Term Loan
(Loan from
Director)

Trade and Other Payables 14,64,997

7
Ncpal Tclccom

Margin and
Deposits

Othcr Non- Currcnt Asscts n<A

8
GPO Box Sccurity
Deposit

Margin and
Deposits

Other Non- Current Assets 1500

Note 45: First Time Adoption of NFRS
The financial statetnents for the year ended 3l't Ashad, 208 i are the first financial statements of the company
which has been prepared as per NFRSs. Ali the financial statements issued prior to this period are prepared in
accordance with Nepal Accounting Standard (NASs). Accordingly, the cornpany has prepared financial statements
that compiy with NFRS applicable as at 3 l't Ashadh 208 1 ( 15th IuLy, 2024) together with the compamtive period
data for ihe year ended 3 i't Ashadh, 2080 ( 1 6tL July 2023). The financiai statements for the year ended 32od

Ashadh, 2079 and the opening Baiance Sheet as ai 1't Stu-awan,2079 have been restated in accordance with NFRS
for comparative information.
The acioption of NFRS has been carrieci out in accordance with NFRS i, First-time Adoption of NFRS. NFRS 1

requires that all NFRS and interpretations that are issued and effective for the flrst NFRS financial statements be
applied retrospectively and consistentiy for all financial years presenied. Accordingly, the company has prepared
financial statements which cornply with NFRS for the year ended 3l't Ashad, 2081, together with the comparative
infolmatiou as at and for the year ended 3 I "t Ashadh, 2080 and the opening NFRS Balauce Sheet as ai 1't Sil'awan,
2079,the date of transition to NFRS.

In preparing these NFRS financial statements, the company has availed certain exemptions and exceptions in
accordance witir NFRS 1, as explaiued below. The resulting difference befween the carrying values of ihe asseis
and iiabilities in the financial statements as at the transition date under NFRS and previous GAAP have been
rccognizcd dirccily in cquity (rctaincd camirrgs or rcscrv'cs and surplus aiioilicr appropriatc catcgory of cquity).
This note explains the adjustments made by the company in restating its previous GAAP financial statements,
including the Statement of Financial Position as at l't Skawan, 2079 andthe financial siatements as at and for the
year ended 32nd Ashadh, 2079.

A. Exemptions from retrospective application
NFRS I allows ccrtain cxcmptions to thc first-timc adoptcr from rctrospcctivc application of ccrtain rcquircmcnts
under NFRS.

I. Changes in Accounting Policies:
During the transition to NFRS, the company adopted several changes in accounting policies to align with NFRS

irements, rvhich significantly impacted on Properfy, Plant, and Equipment (Project Assets under

) Lease Accounting
F Useful Iives of Property, Plant, and Equipment.
) Classification of Financial Assets and Liabilities
F Separation cf administrative cost from Intangible Assets under Construction
) Classification of Loans into Current and Non-Current Portions

Accounting
NFRS 16 - Leases, the company has recognized all significant leases as fught-cf-Use (ROU) Assets

assets are presented uuder non-eurrent assets, and lease iiabilities are split into current and non-cnrrent

(j\
\t*)

\ .",
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1i,
L71e expenses are now classified as depreciation on Right of Use (ROU) assets and interest on lease liabil

#@PY E



CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and
Financial Statements for FY 2080i81

Explanatory Notes Forming part of

The adjustment impacts the statement of financial position, profit or loss, and equity reconciliation, with detailed
disclosures provided on lease tenns, maturity analysis, and key judgments applied.

Useful lives of Properfy, Plant, and Equipment.
The company reviewed and adjusted the usefiri iives of PPE to better reflect asser use anci alignment with NFRS
requirements. The revised useful lives are disclosed in Note 4.2

Classification of Loans into Current and Non-Current Portions
Under NFRS, loatts and lease liabilities are classified inio curreiti and iton-current portions based on their.
repayment schedules. For loans, the portion due within 12 months from the reporting date is classified as current
liabilities, while ihe portion due after 12 months is classified as rlon-current liabilities. Sirniiarly, for lease
liabilities under NFRS 16, the portion of the lease liability due within 12 months is classified as current liabilities,
and thc portion duc aftcr 12 ilonths is classificd as non-currcirt liabiliiies. Thcsc classifications arc prcscntcd
separately in the statement of financial position, with a maturity analysis often required to show the timing of the
l'epayinent of these obligations.

2. Classification and measurement of financial assets
The classification of financial assets to be measured at amortized cost or fair value tlu'ough other comprehensive
incomc is madc on thc basis of thc facts and circumstanccs that cxistcd on thc datc of transition to NFRS.

3. De-recognition of financial assets and liabilities
The company has appiied the de-recognition requirements of financial assets and liabilities

B. Transition to NFRS Reconciliations
The following reconciliations provide the explanations and quantification of the differences arising from the
transition fi'om Previous GAAP to NFRS in accordance with NFRS I:

i) Reconciliation of Statement of Financial Position (Annexure 4)
ii) Reconciliation of Equity as at I st Shrawan, 2079 arfi 3 I st Ashadh, 2080 (,A,nnexure 5)
iii) Adjustments to Statement of Cash Flows (Annexure 6)
iv) Reconciliaticn of Statement of Profit cr l-oss and other Comprehensive Income for the year ended 3lst
Ashadh, 2080 (Annexure 7)
r,) Reconciliaticn of Intangible Assets under Consttuction (Annexure 8)

Note 45: Segment Reporting
The company is engaged in only one business activity of "Generation and Sale of Electricity". Thus, separate
segment information is not provided as pel NFRS 8 "Operating Segments,,.

Note 47; Risk Management
The company's business activities expose itself to a variety of risks, namely prirnarily to liquidify risk and
fluctuations in interest rates, which may adversely impact the operation of the cornpany. The company's
and management have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the company's
managemerrt. The company's risk management policie-s ar-e to identrfy and analyses the risks
the company, to set appropriate risk limits and
rnanagement polieies and systems are reviewed

itor risks and adherence to limits.

-.;' i'

Particulars Summary
Lease Terms 5 Years

Depreciation Method Straight Line Method (SLM)
Discount rate 11%

Effective Interest rate tt%

Financial fmpact (In NRs.)

As on the date of recognition (1le Falgun. 2080J:
Right of Uses Assets (ROU)-3,142,842
Short Term lease liability (Due within l year)-522,232
Interest Cost-i40,391

€\
\'u\
\g
I si.

1,nl Ii
4f/in market conditions and

cpppany's activities.
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CHIRKHWA HYDROPOWER LIMITED

KMC-10, Nepal

Company Overview, Significant Accounting Policies and Explanatory Notes Forming part of
X'inancial Statements for FY 2080/81

Note 47.I: Liquid Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the company will face in meeting its obligations associated with financial liabiiities.
The company's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will have sufficient funds to meet its liabilities

when due without incurring unacceptable losses. A material and sustained shortfall in cash flow could create
potential business continuity risk.
Thc Company is fully dcpcndcnt on Ncpal Elcctriciry Authority for its rcvcnuc bascd on thc PPA. Any dclay in
settlement of dues by NEA will make it diffrcult for the company to operate smoothly.

Note 47.2: Interest Rate Risk
Interest Rate Risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financiai instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates. The company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the compan5r's iong-term debt obligations. Since the interest rate is influenced by market forces, the
company has iittle roie in minimizing the risk. The company manages the interest rate risks by negotiating with
reputed commercial banks.

Note 47.3: Capital Management
Capital includes issued capital and all other reserves attributable to the equity holders of the company. The
ccmpany manages its capital so as tc safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to cptimize ret'.rrns
to the shareholders. The capital strucrure of the company is based on management's judgement of the appropriate
balance of key elements in order to meet its strategic needs. We consider the amount of capitai in proportion to
risk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets.

Note 48: Miscellaneous
. All the figures stated on the financial statements are Nepalese Rupees.
. Notes form an integral part of financial statements.
. All the figures rounded up to the nearest rupees.
. Previous figures have been reclassified wherever lrecessary. (Refer nate 44).
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Ltd.
KMC-l0,Nepal
Annexure forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 3 1st, 208 I ( 1 5th July, 2024)

Annexure I
Salary Payables Amount in NR:;.

S.N Particulars
As on 31st Ashad,

208r
As on 31st Ashad,

2080(Restated)
As on lst Shrawan,

2079(Restated)
I Bhim KumarRai
2 Bhumi Hang Rai
3 Bishal Rai
4 Dambar Bahadur Karki
5 Dhanya Prasad Timsina
6 Dipak Rai
7 Dipesh Lal Chaudhary
8 Dirya Raj Chauhan

9 Gajandra Bahadur Karki
10 Gaurav Rai
11 Gelje Lama
12 Gobinda Prasad Rai
13 Gyanadra Kumar Rai
14 Kiran Hang Rai
15 Kos Bahadrir Bista
l6 Krishna Bahadur Rai
17 Kumar Bishwakarma
18 Mahesh GC

i9 Manita Khadka
20 Mukunda GC
21 Prakash Kumar Rai
22 Prem Prakash Basnet
23 Rabin Bucihathoici

24 Rabin Thapa

25 Rajendra Karki
26 Sabita Maharjan
27 Sambay Rai

28 Santosh Rai
29 Satish Tamrakar
30 Shakti Khatri
3 i Subha Laxmi Shrestha

32 Subina Bajracharya
33 Sundar Bishowkarma
34 Suresh Skestha

65,000

25,100
176,912
338,386

89,1 00

4,471
74,250
47,903

150,505

100,000

1,497
74,250

101,400

36,445

19,140

t34,998

45,540
224,660

I 9,800

9r,259

103,950

27,000_

9"900

207,804

i9,800

10,890

252,450
66,324

107,695

17,820

44,550

i 50,505
29,500

54,628
44,550
39,600
1 1,880

29,998

45,540
89,196

35,639

29,70;

69,20;
5,645_

20,000

25,740

583,57 5

50,00;

i9,80;

3s34;

15,000

24,770

15,000

14,850

26,263-

80,405

127 ,7 65 60 1 ,3 50
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Ltd.
KMC-10,Nepa1

Annexure forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 3 1st, 2081 (15th July,2024)

Annexure 2

Duties and Taxes

S.N Particulars
As on 31st Ashad,

2081
As on 31st Ashad, As on lst Shrawan,

2080(Restated) 2079[Restated)

1 TDS on IPO Rclatcd Expcnsc

2 TDS on AGM Expense

3 TDS on Access Road Construction

4 TDS on Audit Fee

5 TDS on Allowance

6 TDS on Certification

7 TDS on Civil Construction

8 TDS on Consultancy Fee

9 TDS on Contract

10 TDS on Wages

11 TDS on Hydropower and Maintenance

12 TDS on Publication Expense

13 TDS on Project Expenses

14 TDS on Advertisement

15 TDS on Rent

16 TDS on Transporlation

17 TDS on Transmission Line

i8 TDS onlnstallation

19 TDS on Hydrauiic Oil

20 TDS on Hydromechanical Expenses

2l TDS on Grouting

22 TDS on Electromechanical Expenses

23 TDS on Custom Clearing Charge

24 Social Securiry Tax

25 Remuneration Tax

26 Provident Fund

<Q <AA

5,447

6,978
4'7)\

163,235

45

503,291

27,435

84,112

37t

225

82,978

15,450

109,326

150

2,111

8,249

18,829

15

77,08t

352,332

38,400

836

225

114,584

90

1,057,442

133,797

32,475

2,181

38,550

40,236

2,8t5

4,950

454,$;

69,65;

550,014

225

?q ?q5

8 1 1,537

2,647

8,844

7:30,22;

13,960

Total 1,559,360 2,502,681 1,596,735
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Annexure forming part of the Finaneial Statements
As on Ashadh 31st,2081 (15th July, 2024)

Annexure 5

Reconciliation of Total Equifv as at lst Shrawan" 2079 and 31st Ashadh" 2080

Annexure 7

Particulars
As on 31st Ashad, 2080 As on 1st Shrawan, 2079

End of Last Period
Presented Under GAAP

Date of Transition

Share Capital 280,000,000 280,000,000
Accumuiated Reserve till iast year t4,267 14,267
Currcnt Ycar Profit and (Loss)

Expenses Related to Public Issue

Total Equitv under GAAP 280,014,267 280,014,267
Adiustments under NFRSs:

Transfer from Intangible Assets Under Construction To Reserves (i,211,623' (1,73 i,008)
Expenses Related to Public Issue transfer to Resenre (1,141,450)
Opening Adiustment fi'om Date of Transition (1,731,008)
Depreciation Expenses durine the F.Y 79.80 (201,s79)

Total Adjustments to Reserve and SurDlus (4,291,6601 (1.731.008)

Total Equity under Ntr'RSs 275,722,647 278,283"259

Annexure 6

Particulars

For the period Ended 3Ist Ashadh, 2080

(The Latest Presented Under GAAP)

Previous GAAP
Effect o1

Transition to
NFRs

Amount as per
NFRs

Net Cash flow from Operating Activities 92,097.969 1,211,625 90,886,344
Net Cash flow fi'om Inventing Activities (256,839,r40 (2,353,07 5) (2s4,486,065)
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 133,674,390 1,141,450 132,532.94A
Net cash Increase(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (31,066,781) (31,066,78L
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the begindne of the period s1,662,633 s1,662,633

Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the period 20,595,852 20,595,852

Reconciliation of Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income for the Year

For the Year Ended on

The Latest Period
Presented Under GAAP

for the year as per Previous GAAP

Assets Under Construction To Reserues

durin.q the F.Y 79.80

to Statement of Profit or Loss
Profit or Loss under NFRSs

Total Com fncome under NFRSs 6t \
[:;;l,.4F
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Chirkhwa Hydropower Limited
KMC-10, Nepal

Annexure forming part of the Financial Statements
As on Ashadh 3 1st, 2081 (15th July, 2024)

Annexure 8

Reconciliation of Intangible Assets under Construction as on lst Shrarvan. 2079 and 31st Ashadh.2080

Annexure 9

Details of Reclassification as ori the date of Transition of NFRS
The following iterns have been reclassified fi'om lntangible Assets under Construction(CWP) to Reserve and Surplus due to Transition
ofNFRS as on lst Sbrawan2079.

Annexure-10

Reconciliation of Profit before Tax books and Tr

Particulars
As on 31st Ashadh,2080 As on lst Shrawan, 2079

End of Last Period
Presented Under GAAP

Date of Transition

Total Intangible Assets Under Construction (Capital WIP)-GAAP 917,834,391 661,26t,913
Adiustments under NFRSst

Reclassification of Expenses related to Head O{fice (2,353,074) (1,73r,0071

Adiustment of Depreciation Expenses (323,724) (29,720
Opening Adiustment from Date of Transition (t,160,727"

Total Adjustments to Intangible Assets Under Construction (4.437,525\ (7 16fi 171\

Total Intangible Assets Under Construction as ner NFRS 913,396,866 665,501,186

S.N Particulars Fiscal Year
Reason for Reclassffi cation

2078-79 2079-80

1 Audit Fee 16,950 15,000 Adrninistrative Related Cost included in Project cost

2 Depreciation 427,518 As per NAS 16-Propertv. Plant and Equipment
J Fine 565 c) )?) Adrninistrative Related Cost included in Pr<liect cos[

4 Offrce Refi'eshment Expenses 30,1 17 Administrative Related Cost inciuded in Proiect cost

5 Penaltv 172,740 43,942 Adrnhistrative Related Cost included in Project cost

Priniting and Stationery Expenses 84,679 130,36s Administrative Related Cost included in Proiect cost

7 Rent 302,500 317,084 Administrative Related Cost included in Proiect cost

8 Salary 696.000 696,000 Administrative Related Cost included in Proiect cost
Total 1,731,009 1,211,623

ax

Particulars Amount in NRs.

Profit as per Book-A (15,921,697

Profit as per Tax-B (r 5,610,268

Difference(A-B)l (311,429)

Reconciliations:

Excess Depreciation Clairned in books-C (187,499)

Depreciation as per Company Act 5,205,373

Depreciation as per lncome Tax Act s,0r7,873

Rent Expenses Allowed in Tax-D 341,666

Rent Expenses 341,666

Disallowed Expenses in Tax-E 465,596

interest Expenses on Lease Liabiliry 140,391

Repair and Maintenance 111,425

Advance Tax written off /zr"LflSfu .r>.
Total (C+D-E) /;s7 \'*\ (311,42s)
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